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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
(Unaudited)

ltem 1. Financial Statements

(Dollars in thousands, except per share d¢

September 3 December 3.
2013 2012

ASSETS
Cash and due from ban
Securities available for sal
Mortgage-backed securities ($12,004 and $24,911 at fairevplursuant tthe fair value option at September 30, 2013
December 31, 2012, respective

Other securities ($29,491 and $29,577 at fair vaplusuant to the favalue option at September 30, 2013 and Decembe&t(3P,

respectively’
Loans available for sa
Loans:
Multi-family residentia
Commercial real esta
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert
One-to-four family — residentia
Cc-operative apartmen
Constructior
Small Business Administratic
Taxi medallion
Commercial business and ott
Net unamortized premiums and unearned loan
Allowance for loan losse
Net loans
Interest and dividends receival
Bank premises and equipment,
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stc
Bank owned life insuranc
Goodwill
Core deposit intangibl
Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES
Due to depositors
Nor-interest bearin:
Interes-bearing:
Certificate of deposit accour
Savings accoun
Money market accoun
NOW account:
Total interes-bearing deposit
Mortgagors' escrow depos
Borrowed funds ($26,465 and $23,922 at fair valuiesgant to the favalue option at September 30, 2013 and Decemb&(P,
respectively
Securities sold under agreements to repurc
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock ($0.01 par value; 5,000,000 shautreorized; None issue
Common stock ($0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shari®azed; 31,530,59shares issued at September 30, 2013 and Decemt
2012; 30,092,74shares and 30,743,329 shares outstanding at Segt&@M2013 anDecember 31, 2012, respective
Additional paic-in capital
Treasury stock, at average cost (1,437,851 sharkg&v,266 shares
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, resplygi
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)phtetxes
Total stockholders' equi

Total liabilities and stockholders' equ

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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$ 40,32¢ $ 40,42¢

785,21 720,11
273,34 229,45:
5,48t 5,31¢
1,684,27  1,534,43
516,31 515,43
595,43! 637,35:
196,65 198,96
10,16t 6,30°
4,64¢ 14,38:
8,00: 9,49¢
5,08¢ 9,92¢
364,06 295,07t
11,48 12,74¢
(30,819 (31,109
3,365,332  3,203,01
17,25( 17,91
20,73: 22,50(
46,00: 42,33
108,76: 106,24
16,12 16,12;
117 46¢
53,58¢ 47 50:

$ 4,732,260 $ 4,451,4%

$ 180,66: $ 155,78

1,242,31 1,253,22!
27741 288,39t
191,24 148,61t

1,306,66: 1,136,59!

3,017,64! 2,826,84

41,06¢ 32,56(
852,93: 763,10!
165,30( 185,30(

47,65: 45,45¢

4,305,25! 4,009,05.

31E 31
200,98° 198,31«
(21,799 (10,257
255,68 241,85(

(8,18)) 12,13
427,01 442 36!

$ 473226 $ 4,451,441




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited)
For the three montt For the nine month
ended September 3 ended September 3I
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d¢ 2013 2012 2013 2012
Interest and dividend income
Interest and fees on loa $ 42540 $ 4485 $ 128,34: $ 137,54(
Interest and dividends on securiti
Interest 7,13¢ 8,12( 21,26: 23,79¢
Dividends 162 191 574 6023
Other interest incom 13 25 54 53
Total interest and dividend incor 49,85 53,19 150,23: 161,99:
Interest expense
Deposits 7,77¢ 10,09° 24,16( 31,23:
Other interest expen: 5,09( 5,51: 17,64t 17,54t
Total interest expens 12,86¢ 15,61( 41,80¢ 48,77
Net interest income 36,98¢ 37,58: 108,42° 113,21
Provision for loan losse 3,43t 5,00( 12,93t 16,00(
Net interest income after provision for loan losse 33,55( 32,58: 95,49: 97,21*
Non-interest income
Otherthar-temporary impairment ("OTTI") charg (1,627) - (2,50¢) (4,102)
Less: Nor-credit portion of OTTI charge recorded in OtiComprehensive Income, before ta 70€ - 1,08¢ 3,32¢
Net OTTI charge recognized in earnir (91€) - (1,419 (77€)
Loan fee incom (72) 731 1,35¢ 1,831
Banking services fee incon 41F 411 1,25¢ 1,27¢
Net gain on sale of loar 1 52 144 91
Net gain from sale of securiti 96 96 2,972 96
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustme (190 82t (621) (18t
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock divide 39¢ 39C 1,21¢ 1,11¢
Bank owned life insuranc 852 703 2,51¢ 2,08¢
Other income 35¢& 30E 1,071 96€
Total non-interest income 94E 3,51¢ 8,492 6,49¢
Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee bene 10,71¢ 10,72¢ 33,91( 32,22
Occupancy and equipme 1,961 2,01¢ 5,677 5,867
Professional service 1,247 1,54¢ 4,38( 4,821
FDIC deposit insuranc 65¢ 1,064 2,43¢ 3,16¢
Data processin 1,042 1,01¢ 3,18¢ 3,045
Depreciation and amortizatic 737 81C 2,23¢ 2,42¢
Other real estate owned/foreclosure expt 417 887 1,52¢ 2,19¢
Other operating expens 2,272 2,67¢ 8,32¢ 8,77:
Total nor-interest expens 19,05( 20,74 61,682 62,51¢
Income before income taxe 15,44 15,35 42,30: 41,19¢
Provision for income taxes
Federa 4,59¢ 4,54¢ 12,717 12,40:
State and locz 1,431 1,44¢ 3,781 3,662
Total taxes 6,02¢ 5,98¢ 16,49¢ 16,06
Net income $ 9,421 $ 9,365 $ 2580¢ $ 25,13
Basic earnings per common sh $ 03z $ 031 $ 0.8¢ $ 0.8:
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 03z $ 031 $ 0.8¢ $ 0.8
Dividends per common sha $ 0.1 % 0.1 % 03¢ $ 0.3¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited)
For the three months enc  For the nine months end
September 3( September 3(
(in thousands 2013 2012 2013 2012
Comprehensive Income
Net income $ 9421 $ 936t $ 2580 $ 25,13:
Amortization of actuarial losse 174 14¢ 522 447
Amortization of prior service credi @) (6) 29 29
OTTI charges included in incon 51€ - 79¢ 437
Reclassification adjustment for gains includecdhicoime (54) (54) (1,679) (59
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities, (1,729 5,03¢ (19,94 8,30¢
Comprehensive incorr $ 8,321 $ 1448 $ 548¢ $ 34,24¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
For the nine months end
September 3(
(Dollars in thousands 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 2580: $ 25,13
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigenl byoperating activities
Provision for loan losse 12,93¢ 16,00(
Depreciation and amortization of bank premisesemdpmen 2,23¢ 2,42¢
Net gain on sale of loar (149 (91)
Net gain on sale of securiti (2,972) (96)
Amortization of premium, net of accretion of disab 5,744 4,89:¢
Net loss from fair value adjustmer 621 18t
OTTI charge recognized in earnir 1,41¢ 77€
Income from bank owned life insuran (2,519 (2,08¢)
Stock-based compensation expel 2,91¢ 2,86¢
Deferred compensatic (410 (169
Amortization of core deposit intangibl 351 351
Excess tax benefit from stc-based payment arrangeme (339 (117)
Deferred income tax provision (bene 14¢€ (592
Decrease in prepaid FDIC assessn 3,287 2,941
Increase in other liabilitie 8,26¢ 2,057
(Increase) decrease in other as (782) 1,964
Net cash provided by operating activit 56,56 56,44
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of bank premises and equipi (469) (90€)
Net purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank of New \abrdres (3,66¢) (4,757)
Purchases of securities available for ¢ (380,32f) (264,509
Proceeds from sales and call of securities availfdslsale 112,88t 6,85¢
Proceeds from maturities and prepayments of sésgtailable for sal 123,74¢ 121,21
Net originations of loan (201,62) (15,487
Purchases of loar (452) (3,45¢6)
Proceeds from sale of real estate ow 3,40¢ 1,261
Proceeds from sale of delinquent lo. 25,21° 33,09:
Net cash used in investing activiti (321,28) (126,689
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in ne-interest bearing depos 24,87: 30,33:
Net increase (decrease) in inte-bearing deposit 189,97: (73,41
Net increase in mortgagors' escrow depc 8,50¢ 6,07¢
Net (repayments) proceeds from s-term borrowed fund (43,000 19,00(
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 199,34¢ 162,51¢
Repayment of lor-term borrowings (89,91) (80,000
Purchases of treasury stc (14,064 (2,955
Excess tax benefit from stc-based payment arrangeme 33¢ 111
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exesfistock option 312 83€
Cash dividends pai (11,745 (11,88
Net cash provided by financing activiti 264,621 50,61¢
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (97 (19,629
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 40,42¢ 55,72
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 40,328 $  36,09¢
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURE
Interest paic $ 4094: $ 48,36¢
Income taxes pai 11,99¢ 15,52(
Taxes paid if excess tax benefits were not tax clisle 12,33t 15,63:
Non-cash activities
Loans transferred to real estate ow 4,547 3,541
Loans provided for the sale of real estate ow 3,011 1,64¢
Loans held for investment transferred to held &de 13,00¢ 8,78(
Loans held for sale transferred to held for investt 2,21¢ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity

(Unaudited)
For the nine months end
September 3(
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d¢ 2013 2012
Common Stock
Balance, beginning of peric $ 31t $ 31t
No activity - -
Balance, end of period $ 31§ 31E
Additional Paid-In Capital
Balance, beginning of peric $ 198,31+ $ 195,62¢
Award of common shares released from Employee Befrefst (141,059 and 154,5ccommon shares for the nine months er
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectiv 1,60¢ 1,442
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawvairds (120,014 and 113,272 comrshares for the nine months ended Septembe
2013 and 2012, respectivel 161 317
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (235,085L&4,543 common shares for ‘nine months ended September 30, 2013 and :
respectively 84¢ 16C
Stock-based compensation activity, | (289 67C
Stocl-based income tax bene 33¢ 111
Balance, end of peric $ 200,98 $ 198,32¢
Treasury Stock
Balance, beginning of peric $ (10,25) $ (7,35%
Purchases of shares outstanding (836,092 and IBa&¢g®dmon shares for tinine months ended September 30, 2013, and :
respectively’ (13,157 (2,449
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawvairds (176,656 and 142,222 comrshares for the nine months ended Septembe
2013 and 2012, respectivel 2,33¢ 1,68¢
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (300,185L88,025 common sharfor the nine months ended September 30, 2013 ah?|,
respectively 4,262 1,66t
Purchases of shares to fund options exercised9423&nd 60,571 common shares fornine months ended September 30, 2013
2012, respectively (4,075 (83%)
Repurchase of shares to satisfy tax obligationgl{87and 38,723 common shafor the nine months ended September 30, 201:
2012, respectively) (912 (511
Balance, end of peric $ (21,799 $ (7,799
Retained Earnings
Balance, beginning of peric $ 241,85t $ 223,51(
Net income 25,80+ 25,13:
Cash dividends declared and paid on common sh&@e39 per commoshare for the nine months ended September 30, 2042012
respectively’ (11,74 (11,885
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (65,170.amB0 common sharfor the nine months ended September 30, 2013 ahd,
respectively’ (12€) 37
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockauvairds (56,642 and 28,950 common shares for tieemonths ended September 3(
2013 and 2012, respectively) (100 (97)
Balance, end of peric $ 255,68 $ 236,62:
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss
Balance, beginning of peric $ 12,137 $  4,81:
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on sezsigitailable for sale, net of taxesapproximately $15,482 and ($6,401) for the r
months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, resplg« (19,947 8,30:
Amortization of actuarial losses, net of taxes graximately ($405) and ($34for the nine months ended September 30, 201:
2012, respectivel 522 447
Amortization of prior service credits, net of taxafsapproximately $15 and $10 fthe nine month periods ended September 30, 201
2012, respectivel 19 19
OTTI charges included in income, net of taxes gfragimately ($620) and ($33for the nine months ended September 30, 201!
2012, respectively 79¢ 437
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedetincome, net of tax of approximate$1,299 and $42 for the nine months en
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively (1,679 (54)
Balance, end of peric $ (8,18) $ 13,927
Total Stockholders' Equity $ 427,01 $ 441,39¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements .
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentatior

Flushing Financial Corporation (the “Holding Compgna Delaware corporation, is a bank holding camp On February 28, 2013 the Holding Companyholly
owned subsidiary Flushing Savings Bank, FSB (thevii®ys Bank”), merged with and into Flushing ComererBank (the “Merger”)Flushing Commercial Bank w
the surviving entity of the Merger and its nhame whanged to Flushing Bank. References herein t6Bhak” mean the Savings Bank (including its wholly ow
subsidiary, Flushing Commercial Bank) prior to Merger and the surviving entity after the Merger. Hading Company and its direct and indirect wheadlynec
subsidiaries, including the Bank, Flushing Preférffeinding Corporation, Flushing Service Corporatmd FSB Properties Inc., are collectively herefierred to ¢
“we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company.”

The Merger was the result of the combination of émtities under common control, and in accordandle ASC 805-50-3®%, the Bank measured the recognized a
and liabilities transferred at their carrying amtsughistorical cost) for this transaction.

The primary business of the Holding Company isdperation of its whollyewned subsidiary, the Bank. The unaudited consl@ifinancial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (“Quarterly Refjanclude the collective results of the Compamya consolidated basis.

The Holding Company also owns Flushing Financigdi@aTrust Il, Flushing Financial Capital Trust, land Flushing Financial Capital Trust IV (the (iBts”), which
are special purpose business trusts. The Trustsaaiacluded in the Compars/consolidated financial statements as the Companyd not absorb the losses of
Trusts if losses were to occur.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finandetements are prepared in accordance with accaumptimciples generally accepted in the United Stadi
America (“GAAP") and general practices within the banking industhe information furnished in these interim statetaerflects all adjustments which are, in
opinion of management, necessary for a fair statémfthe results for such presented periods ofGbmpany. Such adjustments are of a normal rexumature
unless otherwise disclosed in this Quarterly Repgdtinter-company balances and transactions have been dedimaconsolidation. The results of operationthi
interim statements are not necessarily indicathth® results that may be expected for the fulryea

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finantcékements have been prepared in conformity withirteuctions to Quarterly Report on Form QGand Article
10, Rule 10-01 of Regulation $for interim financial statements. Accordinglyrtain information and footnote disclosures norgnadtluded in financial statemel
prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condemsemitted pursuant to the rules and regulatminthe Securities and Exchange Commission (“SETHE
unaudited consolidated interim financial informatighould be read in conjunction with the Comparyisiual Report on Form 1B-for the year ended December
2012.

2. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the reported amounéssst
and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent ass@td liabilities at the date of the financial etaénts, and reported amounts of revenue and expelsig th
reporting period. Estimates that are particulatdgcgptible to change in the near term are usednnection with the determination of the allowancelban losse
(“ALLL"), the evaluation of goodwill for impairmenthe evaluation of the need for a valuation alloeeaof the Company’s deferred tax assets, the atiatuof other-
than-temporary impairment (“OTTI"9n securities and the valuation of certain finaniciatruments. The current economic environmentiheseased the degree
uncertainty inherent in these material estimatestual results could differ from these estimates.

3. Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is computed in accordance wittoénting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 2@Barnings Per Share,” which provides that unvesteatre-
based payment awards that contain nonforfeitagktsito dividends or dividend equivalents (whetbeid or unpaid) are participating securities andwsh should t
included in the calculation of earnings per shaasic earnings per common share is computed bglidg/net income available to common shareholdgrthb tota
weighted average number of common shares outs@gndimich includes unvested participating securitidse Company unvested restricted stock unit awards
considered participating securities. Therefore,givieid average common shares outstanding used figoutmng basic earnings per common share includes
shares outstanding plus unvested restricted stoitkawards. The computation of diluted earnings gigare includes the additional dilutive effect tick option:
outstanding during the period. Common stock edeita that are antlilutive are not included in the computation ofutild earnings per common share.
numerator for calculating basic and diluted earsipgr common share is net income available to camshareholders.

-6-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
Earnings per common share has been computed bagkd llowing:
For the three months enc  For the nine months end
September 3( September 3(
2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands, except per share d¢

Net income, as reporte $ 9,421 % 9,36t $ 2580¢ $ 25,13:
Divided by:

Weighted average common shares outstar 29,77: 30,43 30,14: 30,43

Weighted average common stock equival 32 3C 25 3C

Total weighted average common shares outstandisicommon stock equivalen 29,80¢ 30,46: 30,16¢ 30,46¢
Basic earnings per common sh $ 03z $ 031 $ 086 $ 0.8:
Diluted earnings per common share $ 03z $ 031 $ 086 $ 0.8Z
Dividend payout ratit 40.6% 41.%% 45.2% 47.(%

(1) For the three months ended September 30, 201&nsptid purchase 111,050 shares at an averagesexpraie of $19.56 were not included in the comjmrn
of diluted earnings per common share as they dreddative. For the nine months ended September 803 2options to purchase 320,200 shares at ange
exercise price of $18.33 were not included in thegutation of diluted earnings per common shartbegare antdilutive. For the three and nine months er
September 30, 2012, options to purchase 557,14@sla an average exercise price of $17.62 werénohtded in the computation of diluted earnings

common share as they are -dilutive.

4, Debt and Equity Securities

The Companys investments in equity securities that have rgaditerminable fair values and all investmentsebtdsecurities are classified in one of the folluy
three categories and accounted for accordinglytréting securities, (2) securities available falesand (3) securities held-to-maturity.

The Company did not hold any trading securitiesecurities held-tonaturity during the three and nine months endede®gper 30, 2013 and 2012. Secur

available for sale are recorded at fair value.

The following table summarizes the Company’s ptidfof securities available for sale at Septemir2®13:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealizec  Unrealizec

Cost Fair Value Gains Losses

(In thousands

Corporate $ 12288 $ 12592 $ 398. $ 943
Municipals 116,10¢ 112,16 21z 4,15¢
Mutual funds 21,63 21,63 - -
Other 17,42 13,627 - 3,79t
Total other securitie 278,04: 273,34« 4,19¢ 8,897
REMIC and CMC 524,07 525,81¢ 10,46¢ 8,71¢
GNMA 41,33¢ 43,43: 2,45¢ 361
FNMA 204,57 201,90¢ 3,08¢ 5,75:
FHLMC 13,89¢ 14,05: 272 12C
Total mortgag-backed securitie 783,87 785,21( 16,28:¢ 14,95(
Total securities available for se $1,061,91¢ $1,05855 $ 20,47¢ $ 23,84:




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table abwlede three private issue collateralized mortgalgieggations (“CMOs”")that are collateralized by commercial
estate mortgages with amortized cost and markeiesatotaling $14.6 million and $14.7 million, respeely, at September 30, 2013. The remaining gtevissu
mortgage-backed securities are backed by one-tofémuily residential mortgage loans.

The following table shows the Compasydvailable for sale securities with gross unredlilbsses and their fair value aggregated by categyud length of time tt
individual securities have been in a continuougalized loss position at September 30, 2013:

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealizec Unrealizec Unrealizec
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands

Corporate $ 39,050 $ 942 $ 39,050 $ 9242 % - $ =
Municipals 83,20 4,15¢ 83,20 4,15¢ - -
Other 5,767 3,79 - - 5,761 3,79¢
Total other securitie 128,02¢ 8,89 122,26 5,097 5,761 3,79¢
REMIC and CMC 244,69¢ 8,71¢ 226,56¢ 7,66¢ 18,13: 1,047
GNMA 9,52¢ 361 9,52¢ 361 - -
FNMA 104,55( 5,752 104,55( 5,752 - -
FHLMC 7,78¢€ 12C 7,78€ 12C - -
Total mortgag-backedsecurities 366,55¢ 14,95( 348,42¢ 13,90 18,13 1,04
Total securitie@available for sali $ 49458 $ 23,84: $ 470,68¢ $ 19,000 $ 23,89 $ 4,842

OTTI losses on impaired securities must be fullgogmized in earnings if an investor has the intergell the debt security or if it is more likelyan not that tr
investor will be required to sell the debt secubigfore recovery of its amortized cost. Howeveereif an investor does not expect to sell a detuirity, the investc
must evaluate the expected cash flows to be reteinel determine if a credit loss has occurredhéndvent that a credit loss has occurred, onlyatheunt o
impairment associated with the credit loss is recaayl in earnings in the Consolidated Statementac@fme. Amounts relating to factors other tharditriwsses ai
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive ingémss) (“AOCI") within StockholdersEquity. Additional disclosures regarding the cadtian of credit losses
well as factors considered by the investor in rearh conclusion that an investment is not othanttemporarily impaired are required.

The Company reviewed each investment that had esalired loss at September 30, 2013. An unrealasslexists when the current fair value of an ibhwest is les
than its amortized cost basis. Unrealized lossesvailable for sale securities, that are deemdxbttemporary, are recorded in AOCI, net of tax.rdahized losses tr
are considered to be other-th@mporary are split between credit related and reaticrelated impairments, with the credit relabegbairment being recorded a
charge against earnings and the noncredit relatpdirment being recorded in AOCI, net of tax.

The Company evaluates its pooled trust preferredrgis, included in the table above in the robeled “Other”,using an impairment model through an indeper
third party, which includes evaluating the finamaandition of each counterparty. For single isstrast preferred securities, the Company evalutitesissuer
financial condition. The Company evaluates its igagebacked securities by reviewing the characteristidhe securities and related collateral, includiegjinquenc
and foreclosure levels, projected losses at varioss severity levels and credit enhancement amdrage. In addition, private issue CMOs are evatbating a
impairment model through an independent third paftien an OTTI is identified, the portion of thepairment that is credit related is determined byaggmer
using the following methods: (1) for pooled truseferred securities, the credit related impairmesntletermined by using a discounted cash flow mdaeh ar
independent third party, with the difference betwtee present value of the projected cash flowstha@mortized cost basis of the security recoeded credit relate
loss against earnings; (2) for mortgdmgeked securities, credit related impairment iemheined for each security by estimating lossesasea set of assumptions
the related collateral, which includes delinquenog foreclosure levels, projected losses at vatioss severity levels, credit enhancement and egegrand (3) fc
private issue CMOs, through an impairment model feonindependent third party and then recordingelestimated losses as a credit related loss aganshgs.
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(Unaudited)

Corporate:

The unrealized losses in Corporate securities pteSer 30, 2013 consist of losses on four Corpasaturities. The unrealized losses were causedolgments i
interest rates. It is not anticipated that thesmisges would be settled at a price that is ldemntthe amortized cost of the Companyivestment. Each of the
securities is performing according to its terms,andhe opinion of management, will continue tofpem according to its terms. The Company doeshawe the intel
to sell these securities and it is more likely timah the Company will not be required to sell teewsities before recovery of the securitiasiortized cost basis. Tl
conclusion is based upon considering the Comgaogsh and working capital requirements and cami@h@nd regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpan'
believes would cause the sale of the securitiesrefbre, the Company did not consider these inverstsrto be other-thamporarily impaired at September 30, 2(

Municipals:

The unrealized losses in Municipal securities att&aper 30, 2013, consist of losses on 27 munigpalirities. The unrealized losses were caused lygments i
interest rates. It is not anticipated that thesmisges would be settled at a price that is ldemtthe amortized cost of the Companyivestment. Each of the
securities is performing according to its terms,andhe opinion of management, will continue tofpem according to its terms. The Company doeshawe the intel
to sell these securities and it is more likely timah the Company will not be required to sell teewsities before recovery of the securitiasiortized cost basis. Tl
conclusion is based upon considering the Comsaogsh and working capital requirements and comi@h@nd regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpan'
believes would cause the sale of the securitiesrefare, the Company did not consider these investsito be other-thalemporarily impaired at September 30, 2(

Other Securities:

The unrealized losses in Other Securities at SepeB0, 2013, consist of losses on one single ligsust preferred security and two pooled trusfeared securitie
The unrealized losses on such securities were damgenarket interest volatility, a significant wideg of credit spreads across markets for theserises ani
illiquidity and uncertainty in the financial marketThese securities are currently rated below invest grade. The pooled trust preferred securdiesot hav
collateral that is subordinate to the classes thenfiany owns. The Comparsymanagement evaluates these securities using pairment model, through
independent third party, that is applied to delusées. In estimating OTTI losses, managemensicans: (1) the length of time and the extent tactvithe fair valu
has been less than amortized cost; (2) the cuimearest rate environment; (3) the financial coioditand neaterm prospects of the issuer, if applicable; anctt{é
intent and ability of the Company to retain itseéstment in the security for a period of tisigficient to allow for any anticipated recoveryfair value. Additionally
management reviews the financial condition of tingle issuer trust preferred security and eachviddal issuer within the pooled trust preferredwsities. All of the
issuers of the underlying collateral of the podkedt preferred securities we reviewed are banks.

For each bank, our review included the followingfpenance items:

= Ratio of tangible equity to ass¢

= Tier 1 Risk Weighted Capiti

= Net interest margi

= Efficiency ratio for most recent two quarts

= Return on average assets for most recent two qs.

= Texas Ratio (ratio of n-performing assets plus assets past due over 90ddagted by tangible equity plus the reserve faridosses
= Credit ratings (where applicabl

= Capital issuances within the past year (where agple)

= Ability to complete Federal Deposit Insurance Cogpion “FDIC”") assisted acquisitions (where applical

Based on the review of the above factors, we caeduhat:
= All of the performing issuers in our pools are wegpitalized banks and do not appear likely tolbset by their regulator

= All of the performing issuers in our pools will dotue as a going concern and will not default agirtbecurities
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(Unaudited)

In order to estimate potential future defaults deterrals, we segregated the performing underligagers by their Texas Ratio. We then reviewedopetihg issuel
with Texas Ratios in excess of 50%. The Texas Rat®key indicator of the health of the institatiand the likelihood of failure. This ratio compaithe probler
assets of the institution to the institutisravailable capital and reserves to absorb lossgste likely to occur in these assets. Thereamasissuer in our pooled tr
preferred securities which had a Texas Ratio irsxof 50%. We assigned a 25% default rate tasiger. All other issuers in our pooled trust pmefet securities he
a Texas Ratio below 50%. We assigned a zero pedegault rate to these issuers. Our analysis adsomed that issuers currently deferring would uefaith nc
recovery, and issuers that have defaulted will haveecovery.

We had an independent third party prepare a didedwash flow analysis for each of these poolest preferred securities based on the assumptisesstied abov
Other significant assumptions were: (1) two issuetaling $21.5 million will prepay in the secondagter of 2015; (2) senior classes will not caé ttebt on the
portions; and (3) use of the forward London Intekb®ffered Rate (“LIBOR”) curve. The cash flows wetiscounted at the effective rate for each securit

One of the pooled trust preferred securities i @@days past due and the Company has stoppediragdnterest. The remaining pooled trust prefesedurity a
well as the single issuer trust preferred secunity both performing according to their terms. Twnpany also owns a pooled trust preferred sectlvityis carrie
under the fair value option, where the unrealizessés are included in the Consolidated Stateméritecome —Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustments. *
security is over 90 days past due and the Compasgtopped accruing interest.

It is not anticipated at this time that the oneglarissuer trust preferred security and the twdgabtrust preferred securities would be settled ptice that is less th
the amortized cost of the Compasynvestment. Each of these securities is perfagragtording to its terms; except for the pooledttpreferred securities for whi
the Company has stopped accruing interest as disdwgbove and, in the opinion of management bas¢ldeoreview performed at September 30, 2013, awititinue
to perform according to its terms. The Company dughave the intent to sell these securities aisdnore likely than not the Company will not legjuired to sell tr
securities before recovery of the securities’ aimed cost basis. This conclusion is based uponiderisg the Companyg’ cash and working capital requirements
contractual and regulatory obligations, none ofaliithe Company believes would cause the sale osdéharities. Therefore, the Company did not comside on
single issuer trust preferred security and thepaoled trust preferred securities to be other-tieamporarily impaired at September 30, 2013.

At September 30, 2013, the Company held five fpusterred issues which had a current credit ratingt least one rating below investment grade. divilose issue
are carried under the fair value option and theeefohanges in fair value are included in the Chidsted Statement of IncomeNet gain (loss) from fair val
adjustments.

The following table details the remaining threestrpreferred issues that were evaluated to deterihithey were other-thatemporarily impaired at September
2013. The class the Company owns in pooled treeped securities does not have any excess sulatiah.

Deferrals/Defaults (1)

Actual as a Expected
Cumulative Percentage Percentage Current
Issuer Performing Amortized Fair Credit Related of Original of Performing Lowest
Type Class Banks Cost Value OTTI Security Collateral Rating
(Dollars in thousands

Single issue n/a 1 $ 30C $ 287 % - None None BB-
Pooled issue B1 17 5,617 2,88( 2,19¢ 23.4% 0.0% C
Pooled issue C1 16 3,64t 2,60(C 1,542 21.3% 1.5% C
Total $ 9,56z $ 5761 $ 3,73¢
(D) Represents deferrals/defaults as a percentage ofitinal security and expected deferrals/defasta percentage of performing issu

-10-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

REMIC and CMO:

The unrealized losses in Real Estate Mortgage Imardt Conduit (‘“REMIC")and CMO securities at September 30, 2013 consikl @ggsues from the Federal Hc
Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC"), 15 issues frone trederal National Mortgage Association (“FNMAthree issues from the Government National Mort
Association (“GNMA”) and six private issues.

The unrealized losses on the REMIC and CMO secuitigeged by FHLMC, FNMA, GNMA and one private issue aveaused by movements in interest rates. It i
anticipated that these securities would be setited price that is less than the amortized cosh@fCompanys investment. Each of these securities is perfay
according to its terms and, in the opinion of mamagnt, will continue to perform according to iteis. The Company does not have the intent to Isedlet securitic
and it is more likely than not the Company will rioet required to sell the securities before recoadrthe securitiesamortized cost basis. This conclusion is b
upon considering the Compasytash and working capital requirements and cawnband regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believes would cat
the sale of the securities. Therefore, the Comlichyiot consider these investments to be other-thaaporarily impaired at September 30, 2013.

The unrealized losses at September 30, 2013 orethaining five REMIC and CMO securities issued byaie issuers were caused by movements in intertest, r
significant widening of credit spreads across migrker these securities and illiquidity and uncettiain the financial markets. Each of these sdmsihas some lev
of credit enhancements and none are collateralizedubprime loans. Currently, one of these securitiepagforming according to its terms, with four ok
securities remitting less than the full principai@unt due. The principal loss for these four siéesrtotaled $0.7 million for the nine months eddgeptember 3
2013. These losses were anticipated in the cumelatedit related OTTI charges recorded for tHese securities.

Credit related impairment for mortgagacked securities are determined for each sechbyityestimating losses based on the following seasfumptions: (.
delinquency and foreclosure levels; (2) projectessés at various loss severity levels; and (3)itcesthancement and coverage. Based on these reaemSTT
charge was recorded during the three and nine mamttled September 30, 2013. During the three mamttied September 30, 2013, an OTTI charge wasdeztor
three private issue CMOs of $1.6 million before takwhich $0.9 million was charged against earnimgthe Consolidated Statements of Income and §0lin
before tax ($0.4 million aftetax) was recorded in AOCI. During the nine morehded September 30, 2013, an OTTI charge was edami four private issue CM
of $2.5 million before tax, of which $1.4 millionas charged against earnings in the Consolidatedrats of Income and $1.1 million before tax ($@ilion after-
tax) was recorded in AOCI.

The portion of the above mentioned OTTI, recordadng the three and nine ended September 30, 2BaBwas related to credit losses was calculatat ube
following significant assumptions: (1) delinqueranyd foreclosure levels of 7% - 24%,; (2) projedtexs severity of 40% - 50%; (3) assumed defaudtsrat 6% -12%
for the first 12 months, 2% - 10% for the next 1@nths, 2% - 8% for the next six months, 2% - 6%tffier next six months and 2%4% for the next 12 months and
thereafter; and (4) prepayment speeds of 6% - 10%.

It is not anticipated at this time that the onevate issue CMO, for which an OTTI charge during thkee and nine months ended September 30, 2013hel
recorded, would be settled at a price that is leas the current amortized cost of the Compsimyrestment. The security is performing accordm@s terms and
the opinion of management, will continue to perfaotording to its terms. The Company does not taéntent to sell this security and it is mokesly than not th
Company will not be required to sell the securigfdoe recovery of the security’s amortized cosishakhis conclusion is based upon considering tbe@anys casl
and working capital requirements and contractudl ragulatory obligations, none of which the Compéslieves would cause the sale of the securityerdfre, th
Company did not consider this investment to beretthen-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2013.

At September 30, 2013, the Company held five peivedue CMOs which had a current credit rating ¢éadt one rating below investment grade.
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The following table details the five private is<DOBIOs that were evaluated to determine if they wéhersthan-temporarily impaired at September 303201

Cumulative
OoTTI Current Average
Amortized Fair Outstanding Charges  Year of Lowest Collateral Located in: FICO

Security Cost Value Principal Recorded Issuance Maturity Rating CA FL VA NY NJ TX CO Score
(Dollars in thousands

1 $ 828 $817¢ $ 9,541 $ 3,966 2006 05/25/3¢ Caa3 42% 16% 718
2 3,20 2,82: 3,447 931 2006 08/19/3¢ D 55% 11% 740
3 3,95¢ 3,72¢ 4,42¢ 1,341 2006 08/25/3¢ D 36% 15% 711
4 2,53t 2,17: 3,492 1,26¢ 2006 08/25/3¢ D 41% 13% 13% 10% 687
5 3,67¢ 3,29 3,95¢ 222 2006 05/25/3¢ CC 23% 17% 13% 14% 709

Total $ 21,66! $20,19¢ $ 24,85¢ $ 7,72¢

GNMA, FNMA and FHLMC:
The unrealized losses in GNMA, FNMA and FHLMC secasitat September 30, 2013 consist of losses on biMAGsecurity, 14 FNMA securities and one FHLI

security. The unrealized losses were caused by mewts in interest rates. It is not anticipated thase securities would be settled at a priceithlss than tt
amortized cost of the Compasyinvestment. Each of these securities is perfaraitording to its terms and, in the opinion of agement, will continue to perfo
according to its terms. The Company does not Hagéntent to sell these securities and it is mikedyl than not the Company will not be requiredsé&l the securitie
before recovery of the securities’ amortized cestiss This conclusion is based upon consideringtiapanys cash and working capital requirements, and cototai
and regulatory obligations, none of which the Conypaelieves would cause the sale of the securiflé®refore, the Company did not consider thesestments to t
other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30320

The following table details gross unrealized lossorded in AOCI and the ending credit loss amamtebt securities, as of September 30, 2013wFach the
Company has recorded a credit related OTTI chardgiee Consolidated Statements of Income:

Gross Unrealize Cumulative
Losses Recorde Credit OTT

(in thousands Amortized Cos Fair Value In AOCI Losses

Private issued CMO®) $ 21,66F $ 20,19 $ 1,471 $ 3,18¢
Trust preferred securitie® 9,26: 5,48( 3,782 3,73¢
Total $ 30,927 $ 2567: % 5252 $ 6,92%
1) The Company has recorded OTTI charges in the Cioledetl Statements of Income on five private issMG and two pooled trust preferred securitie

which a portion of the OTTI is currently recordedAOCI.
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The following table represents the activity relatedhe credit loss component recognized in eamony debt securities held by the Company for whigiortion o
OTTI was recognized in AOCI for the period indiahte

For the three months enc  For the nine months end

September 3( September 3(

(in thousands 2013 2012 2013 2012

Beginning balanc $ 6,19: $ 6,93t $ 6,17¢ $ 6,92
Recognition of actual loss: (18€) (185) (674) (945)
OTTI charges due to credit loss recorded in eas 91¢€ - 1,41¢ 77¢€
Securities sold during the peri - - - -
Securities where there is an intent to sell or ireguent to sel - - - -
Ending balanc $ 6,92: $ 6,75: $ 6,92: $ 6,752

The following table details the amortized cost astimated fair value of the Compasysecurities classified as available for sale ateSeber 30, 2013, by contract
maturity. Expected maturities will differ from coattual maturities because borrowers may have igte to call or prepay obligations with or withoaall ot
prepayment penalties.

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(In thousands

Due in one year or le: $ 2263 $ 22,63
Due after one year through five ye. 59,41: 62,14(
Due after five years through ten ye 64,13: 63,45(
Due after ten yeal 131,86¢ 125,12:

Total other securitie 278,04 273,34«
Mortgage-backed securitie 783,87" 785,21(

Total securities available for se $1,061,91¢ $1,058,55:

During the three months ended September 30, 26@3Company sold $5.9 million in corporate secwsitiéd recorded gross gains of $0.1 million. Dutimg nine
months ended September 30, 2013, the Company 6618 #illion in mortgagdsacked securities and $5.9 million in corporatesigges and recorded gross gain
$3.3 million and gross losses of $0.5 million. Ibgrthe three and nine months ended September ®®, 2he Company sold $6.8 million in mortgadueke!
securities and recorded gross gains of $119,00@eog$ losses of $23,000. The Company used ttafisgdentification method to calculate gross gaand losse
from the sale of securities during the three amé months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities available for sale at DecemberZl 2:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealizec  Unrealizec

Cost Fair Value Gains Losses

(In thousands

U.S. government agenci $ 3140¢ $ 31511 $ 104 $ =
Corporate 83,38¢ 87,48¢ 4,09¢ -
Municipals 74,22¢ 75,297 1,152 83
Mutual funds 21,84 21,84 - -
Other 17,79 13,31¢ 17 4,49¢
Total other securitie 228,66t 229,45: 5,36¢ 4,582
REMIC and CMC 453,46¢ 474,05( 23,69( 3,10¢
GNMA 43,21: 46,93: 3,721 -
FNMA 168,04( 175,92¢ 7,971 82
FHLMC 22,56: 23,20: 64C -
Total mortgag-backed securitie 687,28 720,11 36,02: 3,19(
Total securities available for se $ 91594 $ 94956t $ 41,39 $ 7,772

Mortgagebacked securities shown in the table above inctugeprivate issue CMOs that are collateralized byeercial real estate mortgages with amortized
and market values of $15.2 million and $15.7 millicespectively, at December 31, 2012. The remgiprivate issue mortgage-backed securities arecbiaay one-
to-four family residential mortgage loans.

The following table shows the Compasydvailable for sale securities with gross unredlilbsses and their fair value, aggregated by oateand length of time th
individual securities have been in a continuougalized loss position, at December 31, 2012.

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealizec Unrealizec Unrealizec
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands

Municipals $ 9,782 $ 83 $ 9,78 $ 83 $ - $ =
Other 5,06¢ 4,49¢ - - 5,06¢ 4,49¢
Total other securitie 14,84¢ 4,582 9,782 83 5,064 4,49¢
REMIC and CMC 64,12¢ 3,10¢ 40,65 15& 23,47* 2,95:
FNMA 10,33: 82 10,33: 82 - -
Total mortgage-backed securities 74,457 3,19( 50,98 237 23,47t 2,95¢
Total securities available for sale $ 8930: $ 7,77 $ 60,76« $ 32C $ 2853¢ $ 7,452

5. Loans

Loans are reported at their outstanding princiddfce, net of any unearned income, chaffg-deferred loan fees and costs on originateddcand unamortiz
premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Interesbans is recognized on the accrual basis. Theialcof income on loans is generally discontinudeen certai
factors, such as contractual delinquency of 90 daymore, indicate reasonable doubt as to the yiroellectability of such income. Uncollected intstrg@reviousl
recognized on non-accrual loans is reversed fraerdst income at the time the loan is placed onawmnual status. A noaecrual loan can be returned to acc
status when contractual delinquency returns totleess 90 days delinquent. Subsequent cash paymesgived on nomccrual loans that do not bring the loan to
than 90 days delinquent are recorded on a cash. I&ddsequent cash payments can also be appBeddia reduction of principal until all principalrecovered ar
then subsequently to interest, if in managenseoinion, it is evident that recovery of all piijpel due is unlikely to occur. Net loan originatioosts and premiums
discounts on loans purchased are amortized inéveist income over the contractual life of the loasisig the levelield method. Prepayment penalties receive
loans which pay in full prior to their scheduledto#ty are included in interest income in the pdribey are collected.
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The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses amount, which in managemsrjtidgment, is adequate to absorb probable estitesses inherent in t
loan portfolio. Managemerst’judgment in determining the adequacy of the allwse is based on evaluations of the collectalbfitpans. This evaluation is inherer
subjective, as it requires estimates that are gtibte to significant revisions as more informatibacomes available. In assessing the adequacyeoEdmpany
allowance for loan losses, management considersugafactors such as, the current fair value ofatetal for collateral dependent loans, the Com[sahigtorical los
experience, recent trends in losses, collectioitigsland collection experience, trends in the m@wf nonperforming and classified loans, changes in thepmsitior
and volume of the gross loan portfolio and local aational economic conditions. The Company’s BadrDirectors (the “Board of Directorsteviews and approv
management’s evaluation of the adequacy of thevalige for loan losses on a quarterly basis.

The allowance for loan losses is established thratigarges to earnings in the form of a provisionldan losses. Increases and decreases in theaalt@nfor loa
losses other than chargéfs and recoveries are included in the provisimmlidan losses. When a loan or a portion of a lsatetermined to be uncollectible, the por
deemed uncollectible is charged against the alloeamd subsequent recoveries, if any, are cretitdte allowance.

The Company recognizes a loan as performing when the borrower has indicated theilitgtio bring the loan current, or due to otherccmstances which, in t
Company’s opinion, indicate the borrower will beabte to bring the loan current within a reasonaiote. All loans classified as ngrerforming, which includes
loans past due 90 days or more, are classifie@@asocrual unless there is, in the Compargpinion, compelling evidence the borrower wiihigrthe loan current
the immediate future. The Company’s managementiderssall nonaccrual loans impaired. Appraisals and/or updatéeimial evaluations are obtained as soc
practical and before the loan become 90 days degimig

A loan is considered impaired when, based upomtbst current information, the Company believes priobable that it will be unable to collect all@amts due, bo
principal and interest, according to the contractaams of the loan. Impaired loans are measurestdan the present value of the expected future flaws
discounted at the loan’s effective interest ratggtdhe loars observable market price, or the fair value ofdbiateral if the loan is collateral dependente T@ompan
considers fair value of collateral dependent Idarise 85% of the appraised or internally estimatgde of the property. Interest income on impaigeths is recorde
on a cash basis. The loan balances of collateqmrdkent impaired loans are compared to the soapdated fair value. The balance which exceedsvédile it
generally charged-off.

The Company reviews each impaired loan to detertfimehargesff is to be recorded or if a valuation allowanséad be allocated to the loan. The Company doe
allocate a valuation allowance to loans for whiah ave concluded the current value of the undeglgoilateral will allow for recovery of the loan lbace eithe
through the sale of the loan or by foreclosure said of the property.

The Company evaluates the underlying collateraubh a third party appraisal, or when a third papraisal is not available, the Company will useirderna
evaluation. The internal evaluations are performgidg an income approach or a sales approach.ntloene approach is used for income producing prigsean:
uses current revenues less operating expensetetonilee the net cash flow of the property. Oncentliecash flow is determined, the value of the prypis calculate
using an appropriate capitalization rate for thepprty. The sales approach uses comparable sades pr the market. When an internal evaluationsisd, we plac
greater reliance on the income approach to vakiedhateral.

In preparing internal evaluations of property valuie Company seeks to obtain current data oaubject property from various sources, includirig:tfie borrowe
(2) copies of existing leases; (3) local real estabkers and appraisers; (4) public records (sscfor real estate taxes and water and sewer c)af§ comparab
sales and rental data in the market; (6) an ingpeof the property; and (7) interviews with termnthese internal evaluations primarily focus amiticome approa
and comparable sales data to value the property.

As of September 30, 2013, the Company utilized nedeird party appraisals of the collateral to measimpairment for $75.0 million, or 82.8%, of ailra
dependent impaired loans and used internal evahstf the property’s value for $15.1 million, a.2%, of collateral dependent impaired loans.

The Company may restructure a loan to enable aWwerrto continue making payments when it is deetoele in the Company’s best lotgrm interest. Th
restructure may include reducing the interest oatamount of the monthly payment for a specifiedqaeof time, after which the interest rate andaygpent term
revert to the original terms of the loan. We clgstiiese loans as Troubled Debt Restructured (“TDRien the Bank grants a concession to a borrower ig
experiencing financial difficulties.
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These restructurings have not included a reductigmincipal balance. The Company believes thatuetiring these loans in this manner will allowtae borrower
to become and remain current on their loans. Adhboclassified as TDR are considered impaired, hew&DR loans which have been current for six contee
months at the time they are restructured as TDRiirewn accrual status and are not included asopaxn-performing loans. Loans which were delinquent atttine
they are restructured as a TDR are placed on nomacstatus and reported as merforming loans until they have made timely paytador six consecutive montl
Loans that are restructured as TDR but are nobpaifiig in accordance with the restructured ternespdaced on non-accrual status and reported ap@dorming
loans.

The allocation of a portion of the allowance foaolosses for a performing TDR loan is based upemtesent value of the future expected cash fltiseounted :
the loan’s original effective rate, or for a nperforming TDR which is collateral dependent, tae ¥alue of the collateral. At September 30, 20th@re were n
commitments to lend additional funds to borrowetoge loans were modified as TDRs. The modificatibfoans to a TDR did not have a significant effestou
operating results, nor did it require a significatication of the allowance for loan losses.

There were no loans modified and classified as TDfg the three months ended September 30, 2013.

The following table shows loans modified and cléedias TDR during the period incicated:

For the thee montt
ended September 30, 20

(Dollars in thousands Number Balance Modification descriptior
One-to-four family - residentia 1 $ 40C Received a below market interest r
Received a below market interest rate and the doaortization wa:
Commercial business and ott 2 1,90C extended
Total 3 8 2,30(

The following table shows loans modified and clisdias TDR during the periods indicated:

For the nine month
ended September 30, 20

(Dollars in thousands Number Balance Modification descriptior

1 $ 41: Received a below market interest rate and the doaortization was
Multi-family residentia extendec

2 761 Received a below market interest rate and the doaortization wa:
Commercial real esta extendec

1 39C Received a below market interest rate and the doaortization wa:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert extendec
One-to-four family - residentia - -

1 61t Received a below market interest rate and the doaortization wa:
Commercial business and ot extended

Total 5 % 2,17¢

For the nine month
ended September 30, 20

(Dollars in thousands Number Balance Modification descriptior
Multi-family residentia - 9 -
3 5,30C Received a below market interest rate and the doaortization wa:
Commercial real esta extendec
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 3 1,200 Received a below market interest r
One-to-four family - residentia 1 40C Received a below market interest r
2 1,90C Received a below market interest rate and the doaortization wa:
Commercial business and ott extended
Total 9 $ 8,80(

The recorded investment of each of the loans mextldind classified to a TDR, presented in the tab&ve, was unchanged as there was no principavérgn any o
these modifications.
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The following table shows our recorded investmentidans classified as TDR that are performing etiog to their restructured terms at the periodiciated:

September 30, 201 December 31, 201

Number Recordec Number Recordec

(Dollars in thousands of contract  investmen  of contract  investmen
Multi-family residentia 9 % 2,81z 8 $ 2,341
Commercial real esta 6 8,65: 5 8,49¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 8 2,704 7 2,33¢
One-to-four family - residentia 1 367 1 374
Constructior 1 1,91¢ 1 3,80t
Commercial business and ot} 3 3,08: 2 2,54(
Total performing troubled debt restructul 28 $ 19,53t 24 $ 19,90

The following table shows our recorded investmentidans classified as TDR that are not perfornaiagording to their restructured terms at the periodicated:

September 30, 201 December 31, 201

Number Recordec Number Recordec

(Dollars in thousands of contract  investmen  of contract  investmen
Multi-family residentia - % - 2 3 328
Commercial real esta 2 2,70¢ 2 3,07¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert - - 2 81€
Constructior 1 5,00( 1 7,36¢
Total troubled debt restructurinthat subsequently default 3 3 7,70t 7 $ 11,58

During the nine months ended September 30, 20&8 tliere no loans classified as performing TDRsfieaned to non-performing TDR.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

The following table shows our non-performing loashe periods indicated:

September 3 December 3.

(Dollars in thousands 2013 2012
Loans ninety days or more past duand still accruing:
Multi-family residentia $ 47¢ $ =
Commercial real esta 29¢ -
One-to-four family - residentia 15 -
Commercial Business and ott 502 644
Total 1,29¢ 644
Non-accrual mortgage loans:
Multi-family residentia 17,99¢ 13,09¢
Commercial real esta 10,65: 15,64(
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 9,85¢ 16,55¢
One-to-four family - residentia 13,22¢ 13,72¢
Ca-operative apartmen 16C 234
Constructior 367 7,69¢
Total 52,26: 66,94:
Non-accrual norn-mortgage loans:
Small Business Administratic - 28¢
Commercial Business and ott 2,56¢ 16,86(
Total 2,56¢ 17,14:
Total non-accrual loans 54,82¢ 84,08¢
Total non-accrual loans and loans ninetidays or more past due and still accruing $ 56,12( $ 84,73(

The table above does not include $5.0 million ab@ $nillion of Substandard loans held for salegtt&8mber 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, resplgctive

The following is a summary of interest foregonenam-accrual loans and loans classified as TDRieperiods indicated:

For the three months enc

For the nine months end

September 3( September 3(
2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands
Interest income that would have been recognizedtmatbansperformed in accordance with their origil
terms $ 1507 $ 2177 $ 452( $ 6,65(
Less: Interest income included in the resultsparations 22E 251 95¢ 1,13¢
Total foregone intere: $ 128. $ 1,92¢ $ 3561 $ 5,51¢
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

The following table shows an aged analysis of eaorded investment in loans at September 30, 2013:

Greatet
30-59 Day: 60- 89 Day: than Total Pas
(in thousands Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current  Total Loan:
Multi-family residentia $ 15,47 $ 2,86/ $ 17,99¢ $ 36,33¢ $1,647,94 $1,684,27
Commercial real esta 9,37¢ 5,01¢ 10,65: 25,04¢ 491,26¢ 516,31:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 19,497 68E 9,85/ 30,03¢ 565,39¢ 595,43!
One-to-four family - residentia 2,27¢ 1,20( 13,01¢ 16,49 180,16! 196,65¢
Co-operative apartmen - - 16C 16C 10,00¢ 10,16¢
Construction loan - - 367 367 4,27¢ 4,64¢
Small Business Administratic 14¢ - - 14¢€ 7,85¢ 8,00:
Taxi medallion - - - - 5,08¢ 5,08¢
Commercial business and ot} - - 7% 773 363,29t 364,06
Total $  46,77C % 9,76¢ $ 5282¢ $ 109,35¢ $3,275,29 $3,384,65!
The following table shows an aged analysis of eaorded investment in loans at December 31, 2012:
Greatel
30-59 Day: 60- 89 Day: than Total Pas
(in thousands Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current  Total Loan:

(in thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 24,05¢ $ 482¢ $ 13,098 $ 41,98. $1,492,45 $1,534,43
Commercial real esta 9,76¢ 3,622 15,63¢ 29,02¢ 486,41 515,43t
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 21,01: 3,36¢ 16,554 40,93« 596,41¢ 637,35:
One-to-four family - residentia 3,40 2,01( 13,60: 19,01¢ 179,94¢ 198,96¢
Cc-operative apartmen - - 234 234 6,06¢ 6,302
Construction loan 2,462 - 7,69¢ 10,157 4,22¢ 14,38:
Small Business Administratic 404 - 28:¢ 687 8,80¢ 9,49¢
Taxi medallion - - - - 9,927 9,927
Commercial business and ott 2 5 15,60: 15,60¢ 279,46¢ 295,07t

Total $ 61,11( $ 13,83 $ 82,700 $ 157,64t $3,063,72° $3,221,37
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(Unaudited)

The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the three months endet:®éyer 30, 2013:

One-to-four
family - One-to-four Commercia
Multi-family Commercie mixeduse family - Co-operative Constructiol Small Busines  Taxi  business ar

(in thousands residentia  real estatt  property residentia apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 12,95¢ $ 5,88 $ 6,43¢ $ 2,09¢ $ 9¢ $ 19¢ $ 497 $ 4% 4,18/ $ 32,35t
Chargroff's (710 a71) (645) (4) - (2,379 (89 - (1,199 (5,186
Recoveries 9C - 58 11 - - 17 - 36 212
Provision (561) (603) 76 (152) - 2,44 71 (4) 2,16t 3,43t

Ending balanc $ 11,777 $ 511C $ 592 $ 1,95 $ 9¢ $ 26t $ 49€ $ -3 5,192 $ 30,81¢

Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment $ 265 $ 27C $ 64¢ $ 5¢ $ -$ 17 $ -$ -3 166 $  1,42¢

Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairment $ 11,51: $ 484( $ 527¢ $ 1,89¢ $ 9¢ $ 24¢ $ 49€ $ -3 5,02¢ $§ 29,39(

Financing Receivables

Ending balanc $ 168427 $ 516,31« $ 59543! $ 196,65¢ $ 10,16¢ $ 4,64t $ 8,001 $ 5,08t $ 364,06¢ $3,384,65!

Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment $  26,06¢ $ 24,73t $ 16,98( $ 15,12( $ 164 $ 2,341 $ -3 -$ 5,11C $ 90,52

Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment $ 1,658,20' $ 491,57t $ 578,45! $ 181,53! $ 10,00 $ 2,30< $ 8,001 $ 5,08t $ 358,95¢ $3,294,13.

The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the three months endet:®éyer 30, 2012:

One-to-four
family - One-to-four Commercia
Multi-family Commercie mixed-use family - Cc-operative Constructior Small Busines  Taxi  business ar

(in thousands residentia  real estatt  property residentia apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 12,06t $ 6,32¢ $ 5,78¢ $ 1,821 $ 10C $ 727 $ 65€ $ 28 % 3,381 $ 30,89¢
Chargroff's (3,090 179 (1,072) (29¢) (19 (59) (59) - (965) (5,647
Recoveries 9 124 25¢ - - - 36 - 2 42¢
Provision 3,59¢ (397 98¢ 34C (33 (602) (54) (18) 1,18¢ 5,00(

Ending balanc $ 12,58( $ 5871 $ 5,95¢ $ 1,962 $ 48 $ 66 $ 57¢ $ 1C $ 3,60¢ $ 30,687

Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment $ 62 $ 38t $ 71 $ 95 $ - $ 50 $ -$ -$ 304 $ 1,60¢

Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment $ 12,51¢ $ 549 $ 524: $ 1,86¢ $ 48 $ 16 $ 57¢ $ 1C $ 3,30f $§ 29,07¢

Financing Receivables

Ending balanc $ 1,482,761 $ 527,33 $ 653,15. $ 202,29 $ 6,632 $ 16,31¢ $ 10,76« $ 13,101 $ 260,99¢ $3,173,36!

Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment $ 23,04¢$ 2536¢ $ 31,206 $ 15,42¢ $ 237 $ 16,31¢ $ 1,40/ $ -3 25,30( $ 138,31:

Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairment $ 1,459,711 $ 501,96¢ $ 621,94! $ 186,86: $ 6,39t $ -$ 9,36( $ 13,101 $ 235,69¢ $3,035,04
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the nine months endece8dqar 30, 2013:

PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

One-to-four
family - One-to-four Commercia
Multi-family Commercie mixed-use family - Cc-operative Constructior Small Busines  Taxi  business ar

(in thousands residentia  real estatt  property residentia apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 13,00: $ 5,70t $ 5,96( $ 1,99¢ $ 4€ $ 66 $ 50t $ 7% 3,81t $ 31,10¢
Chargroff's (3,459 (90%) (3,780 (695) (74) (2,67¢) (42¢) - (2,057 (14,079
Recoveries 15E 29¢ 16¢ 17 4 - 77 - 36 851
Provision 2,08( 17 3,574 53¢ 128 2,871 34C () 3,39¢ 12,93t

Ending balanc: $ 11,777 $ 511C $ 5,92 $ 195/ $ 9¢ $ 26 $ 49€ $ -$ 5,192 $ 30,81¢

Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment $ 265 $ 27C $ 64¢ $ 59 $ -$ 17 $ -$ -3 166 $  1,42¢

Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairment $ 11,51: $ 484( $ 527¢ $ 1,89¢ $ 9¢ $ 24¢ $ 49€ $ -3 5,02¢ $§ 29,39(

Financing Receivables

Ending balanc $ 168427 $ 516,31« $ 59543! $ 196,65¢ $ 10,16¢ $ 4,64t $ 8,001 $ 5,08t $ 364,06¢ $3,384,65!

Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment $  26,06¢ $ 24,73t $ 16,98( $ 15,12( $ 164 $ 2,341 $ -3 -$ 5,11C $ 90,52

Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment $ 1,658,200 $ 491,57t $ 578,45! $ 181,53¢ $ 10,00. $ 2,30< $ 8,001 $ 5,08t $ 358,95¢ $3,294,13.

The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the nine months endede8dqar 30, 2012:

One-to-four
family - One-to-four Commercia
Multi-family Commercie mixed-use family - Cc-operative Constructior Small Busines  Taxi  business ar

(in thousands residentia  real estatt  property residentia apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 11,267 $ 521C $ 531< $ 1,64¢ $ 8C $ 66€ $ 987 $ 41 $ 5,12¢ $ 30,34«
Chargroff's (5,257) (2,40)) (3,40)) (1,09¢) (62 (2,500 (329 - (1,488 (16,529
Recoveries 8¢ 24¢ 337 29 - - 59 - 104 867
Provision 6,47¢ 2,81¢ 3,70t 1,381 3C 1,89¢ (14%) (31) (13%) 16,00(

Ending balanc $ 12,58( $ 5871 $ 5,95¢ $ 1,96 $ 48 $ 66 $ 57¢ $ 1C $ 3,60¢ $ 30,68

Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment $ 62 $ 38t $ 71 $ 95 $ - $ 50 $ -$ -$ 304 $ 1,60¢

Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment $ 12,51¢ $ 549 $ 524: $ 1,86¢ $ 48 $ 16 $ 57¢ $ 1C $ 3,30f $§ 29,07¢

Financing Receivables

Ending balanc $ 1,482,761 $ 527,33 $ 653,15. $ 202,29 $ 6,632 $ 16,31¢ $ 10,76« $ 13,101 $ 260,99¢ $3,173,36!

Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment $ 23,04¢$ 2536¢ $ 31,206 $ 15,42¢ $ 237 $ 16,31¢ $ 1,40/ $ -3 25,30( $ 138,31:

Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairment $ 1,459,711 $ 501,96¢ $ 621,94! $ 186,86: $ 6,39t $ -$ 9,36( $ 13,101 $ 235,69¢ $3,035,04
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The following table shows our recorded investmenpaid principal balance and allocated allowancddan losses, average recorded investment ancegttecom
recognized for loans that were considered impaitext for the nine month period ended Septembe2@03:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recordec Principal Relatec Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognize
(Dollars in thousands

With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 2304 $ 2624 $ - $ 2321¢ % 20¢
Commercial real esta 16,83¢ 17,78¢ - 20,88’ 20E
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 13,21( 15,68¢ - 14,30¢ 14¢
One-to-four family residentia 14,75: 18,84( - 14,69 33C
Cc-operative apartmen 164 282 - 232 -
Constructior 42t 651 - 5,351 -
Norn-mortgage loans

Small Business Administratic - - - 32¢ -
Taxi Medallion - - - - -
Commercial Business and ott 2,02¢ 4,32¢ - 6,00: 11C

Total loans with no related allowance recorded 70,45¢ 83,817 - 85,02: 1,002

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 3,02¢ 3,02¢ 26E 2,83¢ 10¢
Commercial real esta 7,902 7,96¢ 27C 7,50¢ 232
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 3,77( 3,76¢ 64¢ 3,991 165
One-to-four family residentia 367 367 59 36¢ 11
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - -
Constructior 1,91¢ 1,91¢ 17 2,32: 48

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic = = - - -
Taxi Medallion - - -
Commercial Business and ott 3,082 3,082 16¢€ 4,17¢ 111

Total loans with an allowance recorc 20,06: 20,12¢ 1,42¢ 21,20: 67€
Total Impaired Loans

Total mortgage loar $ 8541 $ 96,53t $ 1,26 $ 9571¢ $ 1,457

Total nor-mortgage loan $ 511C $ 7,41C  $ 166 $ 10,50¢ $ 221
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The following table shows our recorded investmenpaid principal balance and allocated allowancddan losses, average recorded investment ancegttecom
recognized for loans that were considered impaitext for the year ended December 31, 2012:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recordec Principal Relatec Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognize
(Dollars in thousands

With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 19,75¢ $ 22,88 $ - $ 2772 $ 42¢
Commercial real esta 34,67: 38,59 - 43,97¢ 53€
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 23,05¢ 25,82t - 27,01¢ 48E
One-to-four family residentia 15,32¢ 18,99¢ - 15,04" 18¢€
Cc-operative apartmen 237 29¢ - 174 2
Constructior 10,59¢ 15,18: - 14,68¢ 17z
Norn-mortgage loans

Small Business Administratic 85(C 1,07t - 1,042 25
Taxi Medallion - - - - -
Commercial Business and ott 4,391 5,741 - 5,10z 53

Total loans with no related allowance recorded 108,88: 128,60( - 134,76¢ 1,88¢

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 1,922 1,937 182 3,17¢ 124
Commercial real esta 7,77: 7,83¢ 35¢ 6,53( 40C
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 3,31« 3,31: 571 4,38t 20t
One-to-four family residentia 374 374 94 18¢€ 19
Cc-operative apartmen - - - 101 -
Constructior 3,80¢ 3,80¢ 38 4.27¢ 14C

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - = - -
Taxi Medallion - - - -
Commercial Business and ott 2,53¢ 2,54( 24¢ 2,277 11€

Total loans with an allowance recorc 19,727 19,80¢ 1,49 20,92¢ 1,004
Total Impaired Loans

Total mortgage loar $ 120,83( $ 139,05. $ 1,248 $ 14727 $ 2,69¢

Total nor-mortgage loan $ 7,78 $ 9,35¢  $ 24¢ % 8,411 $ 194

In accordance with our policy and the current ratpry guidelines, we designate loans as “Special tidefi which is considered “Criticized Loansgnc
“Substandard,” “Doubtful,” or “Loss,” which are ceidered “Classified Loans’lf a loan does not fall within one of the previaugntioned categories then the |
would be considered “Pass.” We designate a loaBuaistandard when a welefined weakness is identified that jeopardizesattierly liquidation of the debt. V
designate a loan as Doubtful when it displays tteiient weakness of a Substandard loan with thedaddbvision that collection of the debt in fulh the basis «
existing facts, is highly improbable. We desigratean as Loss if it is deemed the debtor is inbkgpaf repayment. Loans that are designated as aescharged
the Allowance for Loan Losses. Loans that are acerual are designated as Substandard, Doubtlubgs. We designate a loan as Special Mention ib#set doe
not warrant classification within one of the otletassifications, but does contain a potential weakrthat deserves closer attention.
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The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized and Clask#iteSeptember 30, 2013:

(In thousands Special Mentio Substandar®  Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 10,847 $ 23,25( $ - $ - $ 34,097
Commercial real esta 12,88t 21,30( - - 34,18¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 9,65¢ 14,93: - - 24,58’
One-to-four family - residentia 1,71¢ 14,75: - - 16,46°
Cc-operative apartmen - 164 - - 164
Construction loan 1,91¢ 42E - - 2,341
Small Business Administratic 33€ - - - 33€
Commercial business and ot} 2,00( 5,93¢ 50 - 7,98¢
Total loans $ 39,35 $ 80,76: $ 50 $ - $ 120,16¢

The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized and ClaskdteDecember 31, 2012:

(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar®  Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 16,34t $ 19,327 $ - 8 - $ 3567
Commercial real esta 11,097 27,871 - - 38,97
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 13,10¢ 24,63¢ - - 37,73¢
One-to-four family - residentia 5,22: 15,32¢ - - 20,55:
Ca-operative apartmen 103 237 - - 34C
Construction loan 3,80¢ 10,59¢ - - 14,40:
Small Business Administratic 32¢ 212 244 - 77¢
Commercial business and ot} 3,04« 18,41¢ 1,08( - 22,54
Total loans $ 53,04: $ 116,63. $ 132« $ - $ 171,00:

(1) The tables above do not include $5.0 million an@$billion of Substandard loans held for sale git&aber 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respect

The following table shows the changes in the alloeeafor loan losses for the periods indicated:

For the three montt
ended September :

For the nine month
ended September !

(In thousands 2013 2012 2013 2012

Balance, beginning of peric $ 323 $ 3089 $ 31,100 $ 30,34«
Provision for loan losse 3,43¢F 5,00( 12,93¢ 16,00¢(
Chargeoff's (5,18¢) (5,64)) (14,079 (16,529
Recoveries 21z 42¢ 851 867
Balance, end of peric $ 3081¢ $ 3068 $ 3081¢ $ 30,68
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The following table shows net loan charge-offs ¢rexries) for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ende Nine Months Ende:
September 3 September 3 September 3 September 3

(In thousands 2013 2012 2013 2012
Multi-family residentia $ 62C $ 3,081 $ 3,30¢ $ 5,16:
Commercial real esta 171 55 612 2,152
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 587 814 3,611 3,06¢
One-to-four family — residentia ()] 19¢ 57¢ 1,067
Ca-operative apartmen - 19 7C 62
Constructior 2,374 59 2,67¢ 2,50(
Small Business Administratic 72 23 34¢ 26&
Commercial business and ot} 1,157 962 2,021 1,38¢
Total net loan char«offs $ 497 $ 521 $ 13,22: $ 15,657

Commitments to extend credit (principally real eéstamortgage loans) and lines of credit (principaiyme equity lines of credit and business linesredit) amounte
to $66.8 million and $152.1 million, respectivedy,September 30, 2013.

6. Loans held for sale

The following table shows our loans held for sdléha lower of cost or estimated fair value for gegiods indicated:

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Number Carrying Number Carrying
(Dollars in thousands of loans Value of loans Value
Multi-family residentia 1 $ 48t 4 $ 3,44z
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert - - 4 1,871
Constructior 1 5,00( - -
Total 2 $ 5,48¢ 8 $ 5,31

The Company has implemented a strategy of selémtaim delinquent and ngrerforming loans. Once the Company has decidedlt@doan, the sale usually clo
in a short period of time, generally within the saquarter. Loans designated held for sale arassified from loans held for investment to loankl ifier sale. Ternm
of sale include cash due upon the closing of the sa contingencies or recourse to the Companysandcing is released to the buyer.
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The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the three months end
September 30, 201

Net (charg-offs)

(Dollars in thousands Loans sol  Proceed: recoveries Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 2$ 207¢ $ 65 $ =
Commercial real esta 1 76C - 6
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 4 1,48 (243) 5)

Total 7% 432¢ $ (17¢) $ 1

The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the three months end
September 30, 201

(Dollars in thousands Loans sol  Proceed: Net charg-offs Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 14 $ 11,03 $ (2,295 $ 8
Commercial real esta 2 75C (65) -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 12 3,64 (939 -

Total 28 $ 15427 $ (3,299 $ (8)

The table above does not include $0.7 million afgrening Small Business Administration loans tha&revsold for a net gain of $60,000 during the thmeaths ende

September 30, 2012.

The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the nine months end
September 30, 201

(Dollars in thousands Loans sol  Proceed: Net charg-offs Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 17 $ 9,13t $ (1,03¢) $ 6
Commercial real esta 8 4,22: (564) 6
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 34 9,44¢ (2,777 (52
Commercial business and ot} 2 66 (185) -

Total 61 $ 22,87t $ (4,559 $ (40

The above table does not include the sale of orferpging commercial real estate loan for $2.4 roiili resulting in a net gain of $184,000 duringriivee months

ended September 30, 2013.
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The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the nine months end
September 30, 201

(Dollars in thousands Loans sol  Proceed: Net charg-offs Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 26 $ 18,10: $ (2,687 $ 23
Commercial real esta 8 4,61¢ (432) -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 21 7,08t (2,73¢6) -
Constructior 3 2,54( (57) -
Commercial business and ot} 2 714 (13€) 8

Total 60 $ 33,06C $ (5,049 $ 31

The table above does not include $0.7 million afgrening Small Business Administration loans thare/sold for a net gain of $60,000 during the mrmsths ended
September 30, 2012.

7. Other Real Estate Owned
The following represents Other Real Estate Own&REQ”) activity during the periods indicated:

For the three months enc  For the nine months end

September 3( September 3(
2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands
Balance at beginning of peri $ 2591 $ 209 $ 527¢ $ 3,17¢
Acquisitions 1,78t 1,91¢( 4,54: 3,541
Write-down of carrying valu (63 (82 (249) (285)
Sales (810) (262) (6,07%) (2,779
Balance at end of peric $ 3,502 $ 366 $ 350 $  3,66(

The following table shows the gross gains, grossde and write-downs of OREO reported in the Cateteld Statements of Income during the period<atdd:

For the three months enc  For the nine months end

September 3( September 3(
2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands
Gross gain: $ 192 $ 12 3 43: % 57
Gross losse - - (89 (189
Write-down of carrying valu (63) (82 (249 (285)
Total $ 12¢ % (70 $ 101 8 (417)
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8. Stock-Based Compensation

For the three months ended September 30, 2013Gi#®] the Company’s net income, as reported, indw®&e4 million and $0.6 million, respectively, dbsk-baser
compensation costs and $0.2 million and $0.3 mijli@spectively, of income tax benefits relatedhi stockbased compensation plans. For the nine month«d
September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company’s netnecas reported, included $2.9 million of std@dsed compensation costs and $1.1 million of incexdenefit
related to the stock-based compensation plans.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock optiosing the Blacischoles valuation model. Key assumptions used tima&® the fair value of stock optic
include the exercise price of the award, the exgabdption term, the expected volatility of the Camy's stock price, the risk-free interest rate ower options’
expected term and the annual dividend yield. Then@my uses the fair value of the common stock erdtte of award to measure compensation cost $triatec
stock unit awards. Compensation cost is recognized the vesting period of the award using thegittdine method. During the three months endedeSeper 3(
2013, the Company granted 2,400 restricted stoitk.urhere were no restricted stock units grantathd the three months ended September 30, 20Xhdpihne nin
months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the @yngpanted 246,045 and 230,675 restricted stodis urspectively. There were no stock options gddiuring
the three and nine months ended September 30,&013012.

The 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“Omnibus Plab&came effective on May 17, 2005 after approval sy stockholders. The Omnibus Plan authorize
Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board oé®@ors (the “Compensation Committee”) to granagety of equity compensation awards as well ag-tenr
and annual cash incentive awards, all of whichlmstructured so as to comply with Section 162(hihe Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ifiterna
Revenue Code”On May 17, 2011, stockholders of the Company apmt@veamendment to the Omnibus Plan authorizinglditianal 625,000 shares for use for
value awards. As of September 30, 2013, there B@1e330 shares available for full value awards 28@60 shares available for nbr value awards. To satis
stock option exercises or fund restricted stock msttricted stock unit awards, shares are isswad freasury stock, if available, otherwise new share issued. T
Company will maintain separate pools of availathiarss for full value as opposed to non-full valuesls, except that shares can be moved from thdullovalue
pool to the full value pool on a 3-fdrbasis. The exercise price per share of a stotkrogrant may not be less than the fair marketievaf the common stock of 1
Company, as defined in the Omnibus Plan, on the déatgrant and may not be re-priced without theraygd of the Companyg stockholders. Options, stc
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricteatls units and other stock based awards grantedruheé Omnibus Plan are generally subject to amim vestin
period of three years with stock options havingOaydar contractual term. Other awards do not havend&ractual term of expiration. Restricted stockt wavward:
include participants who have reached or are dogeaching retirement eligibility, at which timach awards fully vest. These amounts are includestackbase:
compensation expense.

Full Value AwardsThe first pool is available for full value awardsich as restricted stock unit awards. The poolheltdecreased by the number of shares gran
full value awards. The pool will be increased fréme to time by: (1) the number of shares that reterned to or retained by the Company as a resuthe
cancellation, expiration, forfeiture or other tenation of a full value award (under the OmnibusPl§2) the settlement of such an award in cashth@ delivery t
the award holder of fewer shares than the numbgenlying the award, including shares which are gt from full value awards; or (4) the surrendeslares by ¢
award holder in payment of the exercise price xedawvith respect to a full value award. The OmniBlan will allow the Company to transfer sharesrfitie nonfull
value pool to the full value pool on a 3-for-1 Isa&iut does not allow the transfer of shares fioarftill value pool to the non-full value pool.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s fallue awards at or for the nine months ended Segte8th 2013:

Weighte-Average

Grant-Date

Full Value Awards Shares Fair Value
Nonr-vested at December 31, 2C 318,05: $ 13.3¢
Grantec 246,04! 15.3(
Vested (185,53 14.4¢
Forfeited (17,699 14.2¢
Non-vested at September 30, 2( 360,87: $ 14.0¢
Vested but unissued at September 30, 2013 217,43t $ 14.1¢

As of September 30, 2013, there was $4.0 milliotot#l unrecognized compensation cost related tevested full value awards granted under the Omnitas. The
cost is expected to be recognized over a weigatedage period of 3.2 years. The total fair valiawards vested for the three months ended Septedih 2013 ar
2012 were $4,000 and $2,000, respectively. The faitavalue of awards vested for the nine monthdezl September 30, 2013 and 2012 were $2.8 mélimh$2.’
million, respectively. The vested but unissued f@llue awards consist of awards made to employegsi@ectors who are eligible for retirement. Aatiag to the
terms of the Omnibus Plan, these employees andtdisshave no risk of forfeiture. These shares bélissued at the original contractual vestingsiate

Nor-Full Value Awards: The second pool is available for nauik value awards, such as stock options. The polblbe increased from time to time by the numbt
shares that are returned to or retained by the @ognps a result of the cancellation, expirationfefture or other termination of a ndaH value award (under tl
Omnibus Plan or the 1996 Stock Option IncentivenRlahe second pool will not be replenished byrahavithheld or surrendered in payment of the @gerprice ¢
taxes, retained by the Company as a result of ¢fieedly to the award holder of fewer shares thanrtbmber underlying the award or the settlemenbh®faward i
cash.

The following table summarizes certain informatregarding the nofull value awards, all of which have been grantedstmck options, at or for the nine moi
ended September 30, 2013:

Weighte.- Weighte-Average Aggregate

Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value

Non-Full Value Awards Shares Price Term ($000) *
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 770,358 $ 15.9:
Grantec - -
Exercisec (300,199 14.62
Forfeited (420 16.2¢

Outstanding at September 30, 2( 469,74( $  16.7¢ 27 $ 91€

Exercisable shares at September 30, : 447,44C $  17.1% 2€ $ 69t

Vested but unexercisable shareSeptember 30, 201 8,10( $ 8.4¢ 52 $ 81

* The intrinsic value of a stock option is the difénce between the market value of the underlytimcksand the exercise price of the option.

As of September 30, 2013, there was $6,000 of totedcognized compensation cost related to unvesiadull value awards granted under the Omnibus Pldvai
cost is expected to be recognized over a weightedage period of 0.3 years. The vested but unisedsie norfull value awards were made to employees wh
eligible for retirement. According to the termstbe Omnibus Plan, these employees have no risbrédifure. These awards will be exercisable atdhgina
contractual vesting dates.

-29-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Cash proceeds, fair value received, tax benefitsinsic value related to stock options exercised the weighted average grant date fair value ftions grante

during the nine months ended September 30, 2018ravéded in the following table:

For the three months enc

For the nine months end

September 3( September 3(
(In thousands 2013 2012 2013 2012
Proceeds from stock options exerci $ 7 3 21 % 31z $ 83€
Fair value of shares received upon exercised cksiptions 2,32t 287 4,07¢ 83t
Tax (expense) benefit related to stock optionsased (71) 3 97 30
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis 43€ 56 81: 18¢€

Phantom Stock PlarThe Company maintains a ngualified phantom stock plan as a supplement tprit§it sharing plan for officers who have achievkd level o
Senior Vice President and above and completed eaeof service. However, officers who had achieaelgast the level of Vice President and completeel year ¢
service prior to January 1, 2009 remain eligiblegp#aticipate in the phantom stock plan. Awardsraegle under this plan on certain compensation ligible for
awards made under the profit sharing plan, duéh¢otérms of the profit sharing plan and the Intefd@venue Code. Employees receive awards undemptai
proportionate to the amount they would have reckiveder the profit sharing plan, but for limits ioged by the profit sharing plan and the InternaléRee Code. Tt
awards are made as cash awards, and then cont@techmon stock equivalents (phantom shares) ahtre current market value of the Compangdmmon stoc
Dividends are credited to each emplogeatcount in the form of additional phantom shaish time the Company pays a dividend on its comstack. In the eve
of a change of control (as defined in this plam)employees interest is converted to a fixed dollar amount deemed to be invested in the same manner as h&
interest in the Bank’s noqualified deferred compensation plan. Employees$ weder this plan 20% per year for 5 years. Empeyaso become 100% vested up
change of control. Employees receive their vesteerést in this plan in the form of a cash lump suement or installments, as elected by the emplogéte

termination of employment. The Company adjust§atsility under this plan to the fair value of tekares at the end of each period.
The following table summarizes the Phantom Stoek Rt or for the nine months ended September 3(3:20

Phantom Stock Ple

Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2(
Grantec
Forfeited
Distributions

Outstanding at September 30, 2(

Vested at September 30, 2C

50,060 $ 15.3¢
9,467 15.7¢

(500 16.2¢

59,03 $ 18.4¢

58,74: $ 18.4¢

The Company recorded stobesed compensation expense for the Phantom StaokoP$0.1 million for the three months ended Sepir 30, 2013 and 2012. Th
were no distributions made from the Phantom Stdahk Buring the three months ended September 3@®. 20t total fair value of the distributions frolretPhantor

Stock Plan was $1,000 for the three months endpte®der 30, 2012.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2013 ahe?] #te Company recorded stdo#tised compensation expense for the Phantom StaokoP$0.2 million. Th
total fair value of the distributions from the Pt@mn Stock Plan during the nine months ended Sepet) 2013 and 2012 were $8,000 and $6,000, resplgc
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9. Pension and Other Postretirement BeriePlans

The following table sets forth information regaiglithe components of net expense for the pensiomted postretirement benefit plans.

Three months ende Nine months ende
September 3( September 3(
(In thousands 2013 2012 2013 2012
Employee Pension Pla
Interest cos $ 207 % 22C % 621 $ 66C
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 30¢€ 263 91¢ 78¢
Expected return on plan ass (315 (310 (94%) (930
Net employee pension exper $ 196 $ 173 $ 594 $ 51¢
Outside Director Pension Ple
Service cos $ 21 $ 20 $ 63 $ 60
Interest cos 24 28 72 84
Amortization of unrecognized ga 9 @) 27) (21)
Amortization of past service liabilit 9 9 27 27
Net outside director pension expel $ 45 3 50 $ 13t $ 15C
Other Postretirement Benefit Plal
Service cos $ 11z $ 10C $ 33 $ 30C
Interest cos 55 54 16E 162
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 12 10 36 3C
Amortization of past service credit (20 (21 (60 (63
Net other postretirement exper $ 15¢  $ 143 $ 471 $ 42¢

The Company previously disclosed in its Consolidé@ancial Statements for the year ended Dece®beR012 that it expects to contribute $0.8 milltonthe
Company’s Employee Pension Plan (the “EmployeeiBeri&an”) and $0.2 million to each of the OutsiBieector Pension Plan (the “Outside Director Pem$ian’)
and the other postretirement benefit plans (thené®tPostretirement Benefit Plangiyring the year ending December 31, 2013. As oftédeiper 30, 2013, tl
Company has contributed $0.7 million to the EmpéRension Plan, $73,000 to the Outside DirectosiBrrPlan and $50,000 to the Other Postretiremenes
Plans. As of September 30, 2013, the Company hHaviged its expected contributions for the yeatieg December 31, 2013.

10. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company carries certain financial assets arahéial liabilities at fair value in accordance wRSC Topic 825, “Financial Instruments” (“ASC To@25") anc
values those financial assets and financial liggdiin accordance with ASC Topic 820, “Fair VaMeasurements and Disclosures” (“ASC Topic 82085C Topic
820 defines fair value as the price that would éeeived to sell an asset or paid to transfer dlityalin an orderly transaction between market grants at th
measurement date, establishes a framework for megdair value and expands disclosures aboutva@ine measurements. ASC Topic 825 permits entibehoos
to measure many financial instruments and certdiaratems at fair value. At September 30, 2018,@ompany carried financial assets and finanddiilities unde
the fair value option with fair values of $41.5 loih and $26.5 million, respectively. At Decembel, 2012, the Company carried financial assets amahdia
liabilities under the fair value option with faiales of $54.5 million and $23.9 million, respeetix During the nine months ended September 303,20 Compar
did not elect to carry any additional financialetssor financial liabilities under the fair valuption. The Company elected to measure at fair vedwerrities with a co
of $10.0 million that were purchased during theemmonths ended September 30, 2012.
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The following table presents the financial assets$ ffnancial liabilities reported at fair value w@rdhe fair value option, and the changes in falue included in tr
Consolidated Statement of Income — Net gain (Ies) fair value adjustments, at or for the periouficated:

Fair Value Fair Value Changes in Fair Values For Items Measured at Fdiré,
Measurements Measurements Pursuant to Election of the Fair Value Opt
at September 3 at December 3 Three Months Ende Nine Months Ende:
(In thousands 2013 2012 September 30, 20  September 30, 20 September 30, 20  September 30, 20
Mortgagebacked securitie $ 12,00 $ 2491: $ 95) $ 149 $ (62€) $ a7g)
Other securitie 29,49: 29,577 (381) 32t (32¢) 571
Borrowed funds 26,46¢ 23,92: (272) 374 (2,549 2,27¢
Net (loss) gain from fair value adjustme(® @) $ (748) $ 685 $ (350) $ 2,67¢
(D) The net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmentsented in the above table does not include nesg#ii$0.6 million and $0.1 million for the three nibs

ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, thie change in the fair value of interest rafestswaps

2) The net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmentsented in the above table does not include nesg#i$2.9 million and net losses of ($2.9) millifmm the
nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012atesgly, from the change in the fair value of net rate caps/swag

Included in the fair value of the financial assatsl financial liabilities selected for the fair waloption is the accrued interest receivable oaplyfor the relate
instrument. One pooled trust preferred securitpver 90 days past due and the Company has stompedirey interest. The Company continues to accrughe
remaining financial instruments and reports, asr@st income or interest expense in the Consotidatatement of Income, the interest receivableagaple on th
financial instruments selected for the fair valpéian at their respective contractual rates.

The borrowed funds had a contractual principal amaf $61.9 million at September 30, 2013 and Ddmm81, 2012. The fair value of borrowed funddudes
accrued interest payable of $0.1 million and $0ilian at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2@&Epectively.

The Company generally holds its earning assetgrdtian securities available for sale, to matumitg settles its liabilities at maturity. Howevairfvalue estimatt
are made at a specific point in time and are base@levant market information. These estimatesataeflect any premium or discount that could lesom offering
for sale at one time the Compasyéntire holdings of a particular instrument. Aclingly, as assumptions change, such as interest eatd prepayments, fair ve
estimates change and these amounts may not nelyelssaralized in an immediate sale.

Disclosure of fair value does not require fair waloformation for items that do not meet the déifimi of a financial instrument or certain otherafirtial instrumen
specifically excluded from its requirements. Thésens include core deposit intangibles and othestaruer relationships, premises and equipment, $easeom:
taxes, foreclosed properties and equity.

Further, fair value disclosure does not attemptatioie future income or business. These items maydterial and accordingly, the fair value inforroatipresente
does not purport to represent, nor should it besitoad to represent, the underlying “market” onéfasise value of the Company.

Financial assets and financial liabilities reportgdair value are required to be measured baseeitbar: (1) quoted prices in active markets fanidcal financie
instruments (Level 1); (2) significant other obsase inputs (Level 2); or (3) significant unobsdaeainputs (Level 3).

A description of the methods and significant asgiong utilized in estimating the fair value of ti®mpanys assets and liabilities that are carried at falue on .
recurring basis are as follows:

Level 1 —where quoted market prices are available in arvectiarket. The Company did not value any of itewssr liabilities that are carried at fair value &
recurring basis as Level 1 at September 30, 20dPa&cember 31, 2012.

Level 2 —when quoted market prices are not available, faiuer is estimated using quoted market prices foilai financial instruments and adjusted for diéflece
between the quoted instrument and the instrumengbelued. Fair value can also be estimated laygugricing models, or discounted cash flows. iRganodel:
primarily use markebased or independently sourced market parametanpass, including, but not limited to, yield cusjanterest rates, equity or debt prices
credit spreads. In addition to observable mankfeirmation, models also incorporate maturity anshciow assumptions. At September 30, 2013 and mDbee 31
2012, Level 2 included mortgage related securiiegporate debt and interest rate caps/swaps.
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Level 3 —when there is limited activity or less transpareaoyund inputs to the valuation, financial instrumseare classified as Level 3. At September 303 201
December 31, 2012, Level 3 included REMIC and CMQustes, municipal securities and trust preferredwsities owned by and junior subordinated debes
issued by the Company.

The methods described above may produce fair vaihatsnay not be indicative of net realizable vadueeflective of future fair values. While the Cpamy believe
its valuation methods are appropriate and congistéh those of other market participants, the akdifferent methodologies, assumptions and motieldetermin
fair value of certain financial instruments couldguce different estimates of fair value at theorépg date.

The following table sets forth the assets and lit&s that are carried at fair value on a recyiasis and the method that was used to determéiefair value, at
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

Quoted Price

in Active Markets Significant Othel Significant Othel
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair valu
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas
September 3 December 3. September 3 December 3. September 3 December 3. September 3 December 3:
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
(in thousands
Assets:
Mortgage¢backecSecurities $ - % -3 765,01t $ 696,63( $ 20,19 $ 23,47° $ 785,21 $ 720,11
Other securitie - - 256,56: 213,37: 16,78: 16,07¢ 273,34« 229,45:
Interest rate car - - - 19 - - - 19
Interest rate swag - - 1,212 3 - - 1,212 3
Total assets $ - $ -$ 1,022,79 $ 910,03 $ 36,97 $ 3955 % 1,059,760 $ 949,58
Liabilities:
Borrowings $ - $ -$ -$ -3 26,46 $ 23,92: $ 26,46 $ 23,92
Interest rate sway - - - 1,922 - - - 1,922
Total liabilities $ - $ -$ -3 1,927 $ 26,46 $ 23,92: $ 26,46 $ 25,84«
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The following table sets forth the Company's asaetsliabilities that are carried at fair valueanecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of treuation hierarctk
for the period indicated:

For the three months end
September 30, 201
REMIC anc Trust preferre Junior subordinate
CMO Municipals  securities debenture:
(In thousands

Beginning balanc $ 2293($ 9327 % 8,367 $ 26,19:
Transfer into Level « - - - -
Net loss from fair value adjustme

of financial asset - - (361) -
Net loss from fair valu:

adjustment of financial liabilitie - - - 272
Increase in accrued interest paye - - - 1
Otherthar-temporary impairment charg (91€) - - -
Change in net unrealized losses inclu

in other comprehensive incor (1,820 (52 (500) -
Ending balanc: $ 2019«$ 927t $ 7,50¢ $ 26,46¢

Changes in unrealized held at period end $ (1820% 523% (500) $ =

The following table sets forth the Company's asaetsliabilities that are carried at fair valueanecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of treuation hierarct
for the period indicated:

For the three months end
September 30, 201
Trust preferre  Junior subordinate
securities debenture:
(In thousands

Beginning balanc $ 5,65: $ 24,35¢
Transfer into Level - -
Net loss from fair value adjustmeof financial asset 137 -
Net gain from fair valuadjustment of financial liabilitie - (3749
Decrease in accrued interest pay: 9 273)
Otherthar-temporary impairment charg - -
Change in net unrealized gains incluin other comprehensive incor 31E -
Ending balanc $ 6,09¢ $ 23,70¢
Changes in unrealized held at period $ 31 $ -
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The following table sets forth the Company's asaetsliabilities that are carried at fair valueanecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of treuation hierarctk
for the period indicated:

For the nine months end:
September 30, 20!
REMIC anc Trust preferre Junior subordinate
CMO Municipals  securities debenture:
(In thousands

Beginning balanc $ 2347F$ 942¢ % 6,65( $ 23,92;
Transfer into Level « - - - -
Net gain from fair value adjustmeof financial asset - - 15C -
Net loss from fair valuadjustment of financial liabilitie - - - 2,547
Decrease in accrued interest paye - - - 4
Otherthar-temporary impairment charg (1,419 - - -
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) incliin other comprehensive incor (1,862 (154 70€ -
Ending balanc $ 20,19+ 927t $ 7,50¢ $ 26,465
Changes in unrealized held at period $ (1869)% (159 $ 70€ $ -

The following table sets forth the Company's asaetsliabilities that are carried at fair valueanecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of treuation hierarct
for the period indicated:

For the nine months ended
September 30, 201
Trust preferre  Junior subordinate
securities debenture:
(In thousands

Beginning balanc $ 5,63 $ 26,31:
Transfer into Level - -
Net gain from fair value adjustmeof financial asset 104 -
Net gain from fair valuadjustment of financial liabilitie - (2,279
Decrease in accrued interest paye (20 (329
Otherthar-temporary impairment charg - -
Change in net unrealized gains incluin other comprehensive incor 37C -
Ending balanc $ 6,09¢ $ 23,70¢
Changes in unrealized held at period $ 37C_ $ -
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The following table presents the quantitative infation about recurring Level 3 fair value of finaiénstruments and the fair value measurements &eptember 3
2013:

September 30, 201 Fair Value Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands
Assets:
Spread to inde 2.1% - 3.9% (3.4%)
Loss Severity 40.0%- 70.0% (53.1%)
Prepayment spee: 1.0% - 9.6% (6.4%)
Defaults 3.0%- 16.0% (9.0%)
REMIC and CMC $ 20,19:Discounted cash flon Average Life (years 3.7 - 151 (6.2)
Municipals $ 9,27t Discounted cash flown Discount rate 0.4%- 4.0% (3.6%)
Discount rate 8.0%-18.1% (12.2%)
Prepayment assumptio 0% - 44.3% (32.2%)
Trust Preferred Securiti¢ $  7,50¢ Discounted cash flown Defaults 0% - 15.6% (12.1%)
Liabilities:
Junior subordinated debentu $ 26,46 Discounted cash flon Discount rate 8.0% (8.0%)

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevailue measurement of the CompanREMIC and CMO securities valued under Level 3 lagespread to an inde
loss severity, default rate, prepayment speeddtendverage life of the security. Significant irases or decreases in either of those inputs iatisalwould result in
significantly lower or higher fair value measureren

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Company’s municipal ritgesi valued under Level 3 are the securiteféective yield
Significant increases or decreases in the effegi®d in isolation would result in a significantigwer or higher fair value measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevialue measurement of the Company’s trust predesezurities valued under Level 3 are the secsrifieepaymer
assumptions and default rate. Significant increaselecreases in any of the inputs in isolation ldoesult in a significantly lower or higher faialue measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Companjinior subordinated Debentures are effectivedyiSignificant increases
decreases in the effective yield in isolation woslult in a significantly lower or higher fair wal measurement.

The following table sets forth the Company’s astieds are carried at fair value on a non-recurliagis and the method that was used to determiirefdirevalue, at
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

Quoted Price

in Active Markets Significant Othe Significant Othel

for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair value

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a norrecurring basi:
September 3 December 3. September 3 December 3. September 3 December 3. September 3 December 3:

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

(in thousands
Assets:

Loans held for sal $ - % -$ - % -$ 548t $ 5,31 $ 548t $ 5,31z
Impaired loan: - - - - 27,81 49,70: 27,81 49,70:
Other Real Estate Own - - - - 3,50¢ 5,27¢ 3,50¢ 5,27¢
Total asset $ -3 -3$ - $ -$ 36,80. $ 60,29¢ $ 36,80. $ 60,29¢
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The following table presents the quantitative infation about nomecurring Level 3 fair value of financial instrunterand the fair value measurements ¢
September 30, 2013:

September 30, 201 Fair Value Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands

Assets:

Loans held for sal $ 548t Fair value of collatere Loss severity discout 24.5% 57.9% (56.2%)

Impaired loan: $ 27,81 Fair value of collatere Loss severity discout 0.5%- 90.4% (33.5%)

Other real estate ownt $ 3,50 Fair value of collatere Loss severity discout 0.0%-42.1% (8.1%)

The Company carries its Loans held for sale and @OR&he expected sales price less selling costs.
The Company carries its impaired collateral depahtians at 85% of the appraised or internallynestéd value of the underlying property.
The Company did not have any liabilities that weaeried at fair value on a non-recurring basisegit@mber 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

The estimated fair value of each material clasdinahcial instruments at September 30, 2013 anceDéer 31, 2012 and the related methods and assunsptsed 1
estimate fair value are as follows:

Cash and Due from Banks, Overnight Interest-EarningDeposits and Federal Funds Sold:

The fair values of financial instruments that éversterm or reprice frequently and have littlenorrisk are considered to have a fair value thpt@pmates carrying
value (Level 1).

FHLB-NY stock:

The fair value is based upon the par value of thekswhich equals its carrying value (Level 2).

Securities Available for Sale:

The estimated fair values of securities availablesile are contained in Note 6 of the Notes tosGlisated Financial Statements. Fair value is bageuh quote
market prices (Level 1 input), where availablealfjuoted market price is not available, fair vakiestimated using quoted market prices for singkgurities ar
adjusted for differences between the quoted instnirand the instrument being valued (Level 2 inptien there is limited activity or less transpagearound inpui
to the valuation, securities are classified as €L&vinput).

Loans held for sale:

The fair value of non-performing loans held foresial estimated through bids received on the loadsas such, are classified as a Level 3 input.

Loans:

The estimated fair value of loans is estimated ibgalinting the expected future cash flows usingctiveent rates at which similar loans would be medeorrower
with similar credit ratings and remaining matustig.evel 3 input).

For non-accruing loans, fair value is generallyneated by discounting managemengéstimate of future cash flows with a discoun¢ mmensurate with the r
associated with such assets or for collateral digr@rioans 85% of the appraised or internally estédh value of the property (Level 3 input).

Due to Depositors:
The fair values of demand, passbook savings, NOWhey market deposits and escrow deposits are, figitds, equal to the amount payable on demanthe

reporting dates (i.e. their carrying value) (Let®l The fair value of fixednaturity certificates of deposits are estimatedlisgounting the expected future cash fl
using the rates currently offered for depositsimilar remaining maturities (Level 2 input).

-37-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Borrowings:

The estimated fair value of borrowings are estihdig discounting the contractual cash flows usittgrest rates in effect for borrowings with simitaaturities an
collateral requirements (Level 2 input) or usingarket-standard model (Level 3 input).

Interest Rate Caps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate capsged upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Interest Rate Swaps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate swapmsed upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Other Real Estate Owned:

OREO are carried at fair value less selling costse fair value is based on appraised value thraughirrent appraisal, or sometimes through anriateeview
additionally adjusted by the estimated costs tbtkelproperty (Level 3 input).

Other Financial Instruments:

The fair values of commitments to sell, lend orrber are estimated using the fees currently chaoggzhid to enter into similar agreements, takirtg account th
remaining terms of the agreements and the preseditworthiness of the counterparties or on théneged cost to terminate them or otherwise setité whe
counterparties at the reporting date. For fixa loan commitments to sell, lend or borrow, faitues also consider the difference between cutesmels of intere:
rates and committed rates (where applicable).

At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, thedhies of the above financial instruments apjmnate the recorded amounts of the related feesnamd no
considered to be material.
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouamsl estimated fair values of selected financistrirments based on the assumptions described abedey the
Company in estimating fair value at September 8232

September 30, 201

Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 40,32¢ $ 40,32t $ 40,32¢ $ - % =
Mortgag¢backecSecurities 785,21( 785,21( - 765,01¢ 20,19«
Other securitie 273,34« 273,34« - 256,56 16,78:
Loans held for sal 5,48t 5,48¢ - - 5,48¢
Loans 3,396,13i 3,465,97. - - 3,465,97.
FHLB-NY stock 46,00: 46,00: - 46,00: -
Interest rate caf - - - - -
Interest rate swag 1,212 1,212 - 1,212 -
OREO 3,502 3,502 - - 3,50¢
Total asset $4,551,22. $4,621,05 $ 40,32¢ $1,068,79- $3,511,93I
Liabilities:
Deposits $3,239,37! 3,262,78 $1,997,05. $1,265,72 $ =
Borrowings 1,018,23: 1,043,41. - 1,016,94: 26,46
Total liabilities $4,257,60. $4,306,19: $1,997,05. $2,28267' $ 26,46"
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouaitsi estimated fair values of selected financisfriments based on the assumptions described aisedeby th
Company in estimating fair value at December 31220

December 31, 201

Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 4042F $ 4042 $ 4042 $ - 8 =
Mortgag¢backecSecurities 720,11 720,11 - 696,63t 23,47*
Other securitie 229,45: 229,45: - 213,37 16,07¢
Loans held for sal 5,31: 5,31: - - 5,31:
Loans 3,234,12. 3,416,31. - - 3,416,31:
FHLB-NY stock 42,33} 42,33} - 42,33} -
Interest rate caf 19 19 - 19 -
Interest rate swag 3 3 - 3 -
OREO 5,27¢ 5,27¢ - - 5,27¢
Total asset $4,277,06. $4,459,25. $ 40,42t $ 952,37. $3,466,45!
Liabilities:
Deposits $3,015,19: 3,057,15; $1,761,96. $1,29518' $ =
Borrowings 948,40! 992,06¢ - 968,14" 23,92:
Interest rate swag 1,92z 1,92z - 1,92z -
Total liabilities $3,965,521 $4,051,14. $1,761,96- $2,26525 $ 23,92
11. Derivative Financial Instruments

At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, thep@oys derivative financial instruments consist of pasdd options and swaps. The purchased optionset
to mitigate the Company’s exposure to rising irgerates on its financial liabilities without stateaturities. The Company’s swaps are used to atéithe Company’
exposure to rising interest rates on a portion ($18illion) of its floating rate junior subordinatedebentures that have a contractual value of $6iliéon.
Additionally, the Company at times may use swapsitiggate the Company’s exposure to rising interatts on its fixed rate loans.

At September 30, 2013, derivatives with a combinetional amount of $118.0 million are not desigdats hedges and a derivative with a notional amofifig.Z
million is designated as a fair value hedge. Charigethe fair value of the derivatives not desigdafs hedges are reflected MNet gain/loss from fair vall
adjustments’in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Theigustof the changes in the fair value of the dénrreadesignated as a fair value hedge whic
considered ineffective are reflected in “Net gaisd from fair value adjustments” in the Consolideé¢atements of Income.
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The following table sets forth information regaglithe Company’s derivative financial instrumentSaptember 30, 2013:
Notional Net Carryin(

Amount  Purchase Pric Value
(In thousands

Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $ 100,00 $ 9,03t $ =
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) 18,00( - 96(
Interest rate swaps (hedc 4,23¢ - 252

Total derivatives $ 122,23t $ 9,03t $ 1,212

The following table sets forth information regamglithe Company’s derivative financial instrument®atember 31, 2012:

Notional Net Carrying®
Amount Purchase Pric Value

(In thousands

Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $100,000 $ 9,03f $ 19
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) 18,00( - (1,929
Interest rate swaps (hedc 4,30( - 3

Total derivatives $122,300 $ 9,03t $ (1,900

(1) Derivatives in a net positive position are records”Other asse” and derivatives in a net negative position arend=x as“ Other liabilitie¢” in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condit

The following table sets forth the effect of detiva instruments on the Consolidated Statemenlsasime for the periods indicated:

Three months ende Nine months ende
September 3( September 3(
(In thousands 2013 2012 2013 2012
Financial Derivatives
Interest rate cay $ @ $ 52 $ 18 $ (314
Interest rate swag 56E 192 2,89¢ (2,546
Net gain (loss(1) $ 55¢€ $ 14C  $ 288 $ (2,860

(1) Netgains and (losses) are recorded as pi‘Net gain/loss from fair value adjustme” in the Consolidated Statements of Inco
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12. Income Taxes

Flushing Financial Corporation files consolidatedi€ral and combined New York State and New Yorl @itome tax returns with its subsidiaries, witke #xceptio
of Flushing Financial Capital Trust Il, Flushinghincial Capital Trust Ill, and Flushing Financiap@tal Trust IV, which file separate Federal incotae returns ¢
trusts, and Flushing Preferred Funding Corporatidnich files a separate Federal and New York Steteme tax return as a real estate investment trust

Income tax provisions are summarized as follows:

For the three montt For the nine month
ended September 3 ended September 3
(In thousands 2013 2012 2013 2012
Federal:
Current $ 4,67¢ $ 457¢ $ 12,69¢ $ 12,807
Deferred (85 (35 18 (404)
Total federal tax provisio 4,59¢ 4.54: 12,71 12,40:
State and Loca
Current 1,46¢ 1,46( 3,77% 3,79:
Deferred (37 (15) 8 (131
Total state and local tax provisit 1,431 1,44¢ 3,781 3,662
Total income tax provisio $ 6,02¢ $ 598 $ 16,49¢ $ 16,06¢

The income tax provision in the Consolidated Statetsof Income has been provided at an effectiteeaa39.0% for all periods presented in the tafleve.

The effective rates differ from the statutory feléncome tax rate as follows:

For the three montt For the nine month
ended September 3 ended September 3
(dollars in thousands 2013 2012 2013 2012
Taxes at federal statutory rz $ 5,40¢ 35.(% $ 5,37¢ 35.(% $ 14,80¢ 35.(% 14,41¢ 35.(%
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting frc
State and local income tax, net of Fed
income tax benef 93C 6.C 93¢ 6.1 2,45¢ 5.8 2,38( 5.8
Other (312) (2.0) (324) (2.1 (76€) (1.8 (734) (1.8
Taxes at effective rai $ 6,024 39.(% $ 5,98¢ 39.% $ 16,49¢ 39.(% $ 16,06 39.(%

The Company has recorded a deferred tax assetof $dllion at September 30, 2013, which is incllidle “Other assetsth the Consolidated Statements of Finar
Condition. This represents the anticipated netriddestate and local tax benefits expected to ladized in future years upon the utilization of tivederlying ta:
attributes comprising this balance. The Company reasrted taxable income for federal, state, amdlldax purposes in each of the past three fiseatsy I
management’s opinion, in view of the Company’s s, current and projected future earnings trehe, probability that some of the Compas$20.5 milliot
deferred tax liability can be used to offset a jporof the deferred tax asset, as well as cergairplanning strategies, it is more likely than tiatt the deferred tax as
will be fully realized. Accordingly, no valuatiofl@wance was deemed necessary for the deferreastset at September 30, 2013.
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13. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incoen
The following table sets forth the changes in aadiated other comprehensive income by componerthéonine months ended September 30, 2013:
Unrealized Gain

and (Losses) on
Available for Sal Defined Benef

Securities Pension Item:  Total
(In thousands
Beginning balance, net of ti $ 18,92. $ (6,789 $ 12,13
Other comprehensive income (loss) befreclassifications, net of te (19,94 - $(19,94°)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated otcomprehensive income (loss), net of (874 502 (370
Net current period other comprehensive income )Jost of tax (20,82)) 502 (20,319
Ending balance, net of t: $ (1,900 $ (6,280 % (8,18))

The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other compreherisis@me by component for the three months endete8dger 30,
2013:

Amounts Reclassified fro

Details about Accumulated Oth Accumulated Other Affected Line Item in the Stateme
Comprehensive Income Compone Comprehensive Incomr Where Net Income is Present
(Dollars in thousands
Unrealized gains (losses) on availafor sale securities $ 9€ Net gain on sale of securiti
(42 Tax expens
$ 54 Net of tax
OTTI charges $ (91¢€) OTTI charge
40C Tax benefit
$ (516 Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iten
Actuarial losse: $ (309)(1) Other expens
Prior service credit 11 (1) Other expens
(29¢) Total before tas
13C Tax benefit
$ (16€) Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensa@me components are included in the computatiorebperiodic pension cost (see Note 9 of the Nimtes
Consolidated Financial Stateme“Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit F’).
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The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other compreherisis@me by component for the nine months endedeBapr 30,
2013:

Amounts Reclassified fro

Details about Accumulated Oth Accumulated Other Affected Line Item in the Stateme
Comprehensive Income Compone Comprehensive Incomr Where Net Income is Present
(Dollars in thousands
Unrealized gains losses on availafor sale securities $ 2,97 Net gain on sale of securiti
(1,299 Tax expens
$ 1,67¢ Net of tax
OTTI charges $ (1,419 OTTI charge
62( Tax benefit
$ (799 Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iten
Actuarial losse: $ (927)(1) Other expens
Prior service credit 32 (1) Other expens
(899 Total before tas
391 Tax benefit
$ (509) Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensivarirammponents are included in the computation bpeeodic pension cost (see Note 9 of the Note
Consolidated Financial Stateme“Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit F’).

14. Regulatory

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvenfet of 1991 (“FDICIA”) imposes a number of mandatory supervisory measomebanks and thr
institutions. Among other matters, FDICIA estabéidhfive capital zones or classifications (wedpitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapédlizsignificantl
undercapitalized and critically undercapitalizesi)ch classifications are used by bank regulatoeneigs to determine matters ranging from eachtirtistn’s quarterl
FDIC deposit insurance premium assessments, taeggrof applications authorizing institutions tmwg their asset size or otherwise expand busineteitees.
Under current capital regulations, the Bank is neglito comply with each of three separate capi@quacy standards.
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At September 30, 2013, the Bank exceeded eacheofthitee capital requirements and is categorizetiwvadi-capitalized” under the prompt corrective act
regulations. Set forth below is a summary of tl@lBs compliance:

(Dollars in thousands Amount Percent of Asse
Core Capital:
Capital level $438,42: 9.48%
Well capitalizec 231,23 5.0C
Excess 207,18¢ 4.4¢
Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital:
Capital level $438,42: 14.22%
Well capitalizec 185,02: 6.0C
Excess 253,40: 8.2
Risk-Based Capital:
Capital level $469,23¢ 15.22%
Well capitalizec 308,37( 10.0¢
Excess 160,86¢ 5.22

As a result of its conversion to a bank holding pany on February 28, 2013, the Holding Company inecsubject to the same regulatory capital requirésnas
the Bank. At September 30, 2013, the Holding Coryjsanier | (leverage) capital, Tier | risk-basecpital and Total risk-based capital was 9.64%, 1%4@nd
15.47%, respectively.

15. New Authoritative Accounting Pronoucements

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013v@2ich amends the authoritative accounting guidamader ASC Topic 220 Comprehensive Incomé& The
amendments do not change the current requirementsgorting net income or other comprehensivermedn financial statements. However, the amendnreqisire
an entity to provide information about the amoumstslassified out of accumulated other comprehengsigeme by component. In addition, an entity isuiegd tc
present, either on the face of the statement whetencome is presented or in the notes, signifieanounts reclassified out of accumulated otherpretrensiv
income by the respective line items of net incomednly if the amount reclassified is required uUn@AAP to be reclassified to net income in its estti in the sar
reporting period. For other amounts that are ngtired under GAAP to be reclassified in their ezitirto net income, an entity is required to cneference to oth
disclosures required under GAAP that provide addél detail about those amounts. The amendmertdsrupdate are effective prospectively for repartperiod
beginning after December 15, 2012. Adoption of tipslate did not have a material effect on the Cawisaconsolidated results of operations or finanomdition
See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Finatatements “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Quarterly Report should be read in conjunctiith the more detailed and comprehensive discsimcluded in our Annual Report on Form Kder the yea
ended December 31, 2012. In addition, please th&l section in conjunction with our Consolidatethdncial Statements and Notes to Consolidated Fiizd
Statements contained herein.

As used in this Quarterly Report, the woi‘we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are used to refer to Flushing Financial Corporatiamd our consolidate
subsidiaries, including the surviving entity of threrger (the “Merger”)on February 28, 2013 of our wholly owned subsididfushing Savings Bank, FSB (
“Savings Bank”) with and into Flushing Commerciahiik (the “Commercial Bank”)The surviving entity of the Merger was the Comna¢Bank, whose name t
been changed to “Flushing Bank.” References heteithe “Bank” mean the Savings Bank (including its wholly ownéasgliary, the Commercial Bank) prior to
Merger and the surviving entity after the Merg

Statements contained in this Quarterly Reportirglato plans, strategies, objectives, economicgoerénce and trends, projections of results of §peattivities o
investments and other statements that are notigésnos of historical facts may be forwalabking statements within the meaning of SectioA 27 the Securities Ai
of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchakgeof 1934. Forwardeoking information is inherently subject to risked uncertainties and actual results c
differ materially from those currently anticipatdde to a number of factors, which include, butreselimited to, factors discussed elsewhere in Qusrterly Repo
and in other documents filed by us with the Semsiand Exchange Commission from time to time udicig, without limitation, our Annual Report on Forl0K for
the year ended December 31, 2012. Forward-lookiaigreents may be identified by terms such as “mawill,” “should,” “could,” “expects,” “plans,” “intends,”
“anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts;forecasts,” “potential” or “continuedr similar terms or the negative of these termshalgh we believe that t
expectations reflected in the forwdabking statements are reasonable, we cannot giegréuture results, levels of activity, performance@chievements. We have
obligation to update these forward-looking statetsien

Executive Summary

We are a Delaware corporation organized in May 199 Savings Bank was organized in 1929 as a Newk ®tatechartered mutual savings bank. In 1994
Savings Bank converted to a federally chartereduadigavings bank and changed its name from FlusBawngs Bank to Flushing Savings Bank, FSB. Thengs
Bank converted from a federally chartered mutusinggs bank to a federally chartered stock saviraysklon November 21, 1995, at which time FlushinggRcia
Corporation acquired all of the stock of the SasiBgnk. On February 28, 2013, in the Merger, thergaBank merged with and into the Commercial Bavily the
Commercial Bank as the surviving entity. Pursuarthe Merger, the Commercial Bank’s charter was ghdro a fullservice New York State chartered comme
bank, and its name was changed to Flushing Bank.

On July 21, 2011, as a result of the Dodd-Frankl\8tket Reform and Consumer Protection Act, their§a Banks primary regulator became the Office of
Comptroller of the Currency and Flushing Finan€alporations primary regulator became the Federal ReservedBafaBovernors. Upon completion of the Mer
on February 28, 2013, the Basljrimary regulator became the New York State Diepent of Financial Services (formerly, the New Y@&tate Banking Departmer
and its primary federal regulator became the Féd®eposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC'peposits are insured to the maximum allowable arnbyrthe FDIC
Additionally, the Bank is a member of the Federant¢ Loan Bank system. Also in connection with thergér, Flushing Financial Corporation became a
holding company. We do not anticipate any significehanges to our operations or services as atrekthhe Merger. The primary business of FlushingaRiia
Corporation has been the operation of the Bank. Bdmk owns three subsidiaries: Flushing Preferneddihg Corporation, Flushing Service Corporatiamg &SE
Properties Inc. In November 2006, the Bank launameihternet branch, iGObanking.c6m The activities of Flushing Financial Corporatioe @rimarily funded b
dividends, if any, received from the Bank, issuancgjunior subordinated debt, and issuances oityegacurities. Flushing Financial Corporatis@ommon stock
traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market undersymabol “FFIC.”
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Our principal business is attracting retail demo&ibm the general public and investing those diépasgether with funds generated from ongoing apens an
borrowings, primarily in (1) originations and puedes of multi-family residential properties and,atdesser extent, one-to-four family (focusing oixed-use
properties, which are properties that contain betiidential dwelling units and commercial unitsjlaommercial real estate mortgage loans; (2) coctitn loans
primarily for residential properties; (3) Small Busss Administration (“SBA”) loans and other smalisiness loans; (4) mortgage loan surrogates suchoatgage-
backed securities; and (5) U.S. government seesritiorporate fixe@icome securities and other marketable securli&salso originate certain other consumer i
including overdraft lines of credit. Our resultsagferations depend primarily on net interest incowtach is the difference between the income eaoreds interest-
earning assets and the cost of our intebestring liabilities. Net interest income is theulesf our interest rate margin, which is the diffiece between the aver:
yield earned on interest-earning assets and thegeeost of interest-bearing liabilities, adjusfedthe difference in the average balance of esezarning assets
compared to the average balance of interest-bedidhiljties. We also generate namerest income from loan fees, service chargeseposit accounts, mortge
servicing fees, and other fees, income earned ok Bavned Life Insurance (“BOLI"), dividends on FedieHome Bank of New York (“FHLB-NY")stock and nt
gains and losses on sales of securities and l@unsoperating expenses consist principally of eygdocompensation and benefits, occupancy and equipoost:
other general and administrative expenses and iadamexpense. Our results of operations also eaignificantly affected by our periodic provisifor loan losse
and specific provision for losses on real estateesly

Our strategy is to continue our focus on beingnatitution serving consumers, businesses, and gomertal units in our local markets. In furtherantéhis objective,
we intend to:

« continue our emphasis on the origination of mutifly residential mortgage loans;

« continue our transition to a commercial bankingdiingon;

« increase our commitment to the m-cultural marketplace, with a particular focus oe Asian community in Queer
«  maintain asset qualit

« manage deposit growth and maintain a low costmdd$uthrougt

. business banking deposi
. municipal deposits through government banking,
. new customer relationships via iGObanking.®;

« cross sell to lending and deposit custom
- take advantage of market disruptions to attraentand customers from competitc
« manage interest rate risk and capital;
« manage enterpri-wide risk.
There can be no assurance that we will be ablfdoteely implement this strategy. Our strateggibject to change by the Board of Directors.

Our investment policy, which is approved by the Boaf Directors, is designed primarily to manage ithterest rate sensitivity of our overall assetd kabilities, tc
generate a favorable return without incurring unduerest rate risk and credit risk, to complemeuat lending activities and to provide and maintiguidity. In
establishing our investment strategies, we considerbusiness and growth strategies, the economitomment, our interest rate risk exposure, otergst rat
sensitivity “gap” position, the types of securitiesbe held and other factors. We classify our stwent securities as available for sale.

We carry a portion of our financial assets andrfeial liabilities at fair value and record changesgheir fair value through earnings in novierest income on o
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehemso@me. A description of the financial assets &énencial liabilities that are carried at fair valdhroug!
earnings can be found in Note 10 of the Noteseéddbnsolidated Financial Statements.

We saw continued improvement in non-performing &sses they decreased by $12.3 million during kineet months ended September 30, 2013. Chaffgder the
third quarter of 2013 were primarily due to salésielinquent loans and our continued practice dfimiing updated appraisals, and recording chaffgebased ¢
these up-to-date values as opposed to adding talltheance for loan losses. Net charge-offs intthiel quarter were $5.0 million. We do not carrynAeerforming
loans at more than 85% of their current appraisddev This process has ensured that we have keptwigh changing values in the real estate markat. averag
loan-to-value ratio for our non-performing loanaséd upon current appraisals, was 45.4% at thefethé quarter.
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Net loans increased $109.6 million during the thjuéirter of 2013, as loan originations for the tpratotaled a record $262.2 million. Our loan pipelat Septemb
30, 2013 grew to $262.2 million from $211.4 milli@ December 31, 2012. Our lending departmentsiragntto emphasize full relationship banking withr
borrowers. Originations were focused on mfatiily and commercial business loans, which represk49% and 38%, respectively, of loan originaidaring th
third quarter of 2013. We generally obtain full kieny relationships with these borrowers.

Our net interest margin for the third quarter o12@vas 3.38%, a decrease of 11 basis points frers¢bond quarter of 2013. While we saw a decreagerifunding
costs of five basis points for the quarter, thédy@n interesiearning assets decreased 14 basis points. In thentinterest rate environment, new loans andrgezs
are added at rates well below our portfolio avergigéd, and higher yielding loans and securities arepaid. We also continued to experience higfean averac
activity in loans refinancing during the third gtearof 2013, which further reduced the yield on lman portfolio.

Net income for the nine months ended Septembe2@IB was $25.8 million, an increase of $0.7 million2.7%, compared to $25.1 million for the ninenths ende
September 30, 2012. Diluted earnings per commoreshare $0.86 for the nine months ended Septenthe2@.3, an increase of $0.04, or 4.9%, from $@82he
nine months ended September 30, 2012.

We recorded a provision for loan losses of $12.Bianifor the nine months ended September 30, 20d8¢ch was a decrease of $3.1 million from $16.0ioni
recorded in the nine months ended September 3@. ZMlring the nine months ended September 30, 2@di3performing loans decreased $28.7 million to $
million from $89.8 million at December 31, 2012.tNargeeffs for the nine months ended September 30, 26tE3ed $13.2 million, or 55 basis points of ave
loans. The current loan-to-value ratio for our namforming loans collateralized by real estate 4&a4% at September 30, 2013. When we have obtgiregkrtie
through foreclosure, we have been able to quickliytke properties at amounts that approximate hadke. We anticipate that we will continue to k»e loss conter
in our loan portfolio. The Bank continues to mainteonservative underwriting standards. As a resiuthe quarterly analysis of the allowance fomie#osses, it wi
deemed necessary to record a $12.9 million praviéiw possible loan losses for the nine months @rfseptember 30, 2013. SeAlL OWANCE FOR LOAN
LOSSES.”

At September 30, 2013, the Bank continues to bé-aagitalized under regulatory requirements, withrég Tier 1 risk-based and Total riblased capital ratios
9.48%, 14.21% and 15.21%, respectively. The Comfmayso subject to the same regulatory requiresnefit September 30, 2013, the Compangapital ratios fc
Core, Tier 1 risk-based and Total risk-based chyitios were 9.64%, 14.46% and 15.46%, respegtivel

COMPARISON OF OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE THREE MONTH S ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

General. Net income for the three months ended SeptemBger@13 was $9.4 million, an increase of $0.1 wnilior 0.6%, from the comparable prior
period. Diluted earnings per common share werg2far the three months ended September 30, 20@liBceease of $0.01, or 3.2%, from $0.31 for threehmonth
ended September 30, 2012.

Return on average equity was 8.9% for the threetinsoended September 30, 2013 compared to 8.7%héothtee months ended September 30, 2012. Rett
average assets was 0.8% for the three months Sefgdmber 30, 2013 compared to 0.9% for the thoeehm ended September 30, 2012.

Interest Income. Total interest and dividend income decreased #8l®n, or 6.3%, to $49.9 million for the threeomths ended September 30, 2013 from ¢
million for the three months ended September 3022The decrease in interest income was attribeimbh 56 basis point decline in the yield of iegearning asse
to 4.56% for the three months ended SeptemberBEB fom 5.12% in the comparable prior year perjttially offset by the effect of an increase 81.3.5 millior
in the average balance of interestrning assets to $4,371.3 million for the threatin® ended September 30, 2013 from $4,157.8 milbotthe comparable prior ye
period. The 56 basis point decline in the yieldntérestearning assets was primarily due to a 47 basig pedtuction in the yield of the loan portfolio tdl8% for th
three months ended September 30, 2013 from 5.65%éothree months ended September 30, 2012, cechbiith an 82 basis point decline in the yield otal
securities to 2.77% for the three months endedeBaptr 30, 2013 from 3.59% for the comparable pr@r period. In addition, the yield of interestrning assets w
negatively impacted by a $127.7 million increaséhim average balance of the lower yielding se&gritiortfolio for the three months ended Septembgel@13. $48.
million of the increase in the average balancehef decurities portfolio was due to the purchasfioafing rate corporate debt that was purchasedssist in th
management of interest rate risk. The 47 basist pigicrease in the yield of the loan portfolio wasnarily due to a decline in the rates earned om le&an origination
and existing loans modified to lower rates, pdstiaffset by an increase in prepayment penalty mmeauring the three months ended September 30, @ihBared t
the three months ended September 30, 2012. Tha$2 point decrease in the yield of the securji@sfolio was primarily due to the purchase of neseurities ¢
lower yields than the existing portfolio. The yiedn the mortgage loan portfolio, excluding prepeagimpenalty income, decreased 44 basis pointsl&/s for the
three months ended September 30, 2013 from 5.60%ddhree months ended September 30, 2012.
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Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $2.7 million, or 17t6%12.9 million for the three months ended Seyber 30, 2013 from $15.6 million for the th
months ended September 30, 2012. The decreaseiashexpense was due to the reduction in theofasterestbearing liabilities, which decreased 36 basis saic
1.29% for the three months ended September 30, 208 1.65% for the comparable prior year pericaktiplly offset by a $190.1 million increase in theerag
balance of interedtearing liabilities to $3,981.4 million for the #& months ended September 30, 2013 from $3,791i8mior the comparable prior year period.
36 basis point decrease in the cost of intdvesting liabilities was primarily attributable toet Bank reducing the rates it pays on its depesidyrcts and a shifting
deposit concentrations, as higher costing certégaf deposits average balance decreased $318dhro $1,191.6 million, while lower costing codeposits averay
balance increased $291.2 million to $1,759.5 mmllfor the three months ended September 30, 20Hglitidnally, the cost of borrowed funds decreasédo@si:
points to 2.06% for the three months ended Septed®e2013 from 2.82% for the comparable prior yearod. The decrease in the cost of borrowed Sumd:
primarily due to maturing and new borrowings beiaglaced and obtained at lower rates. The cosentificates of deposit, money market accountsinggvaccoun
and NOW accounts decreased 26 basis points, twse paisits, one basis point and six basis poinspeetively, for the three months ended SeptembeP@DB fron
the comparable prior year period. This resulted decrease in the cost of due to depositors #a3iks points to 1.05% for the three months endeteSwer 30, 201
from 1.36% for the three months ended Septembe2(BIR.

Net Interest Income. For the three months ended September 30, 201#Hteeest income was $37.0 million, a decreas®006 million, or 1.6%, from $37.6 millic
for the three months ended September 30, 2012d&beease in net interest income was attributabée20 basis point decrease in the in&rest spread to 3.27%
the three months ended September 30, 2013 fron¥Bfdi7the three months ended September 30, 2012alpaoffset by the effect of an increase of $ZA &illion in
the average balance of interesirning assets to $4,371.3 million for the threentm® ended September 30, 2013 from $4,157.8 miftiothe comparable prior ye
period. The yield on interestarning assets decreased 56 basis points to 4 &6f#tefthree months ended September 30, 2013 frb2¥&for the three months ent
September 30, 2012, while the cost of funds deerk&6 basis points to 1.29% for the three montlde@iSeptember 30, 2013 from 1.65% for the companatib!
year period. The net interest margin decreaseda2 Ipoints to 3.38% for the three months endedeSdyer 30, 2013 from 3.62% for the three monthsee
September 30, 2012. Excluding prepayment penattgnte, the net interest margin would have decre@®basis points to 3.26% for the three months €
September 30, 2013 from 3.48% for the three mostkied September 30, 2012.

Provision for Loan Losses. A provision for loan losses of $3.4 million was eeded for the three months ended September 30, 2@1i8h was a decrease of §
million, or 31.3%, from that recorded for the thne®nths ended September 30, 2012. During the tm@eths ended September 30, 2013, perferming loan
decreased $12.7 million to $61.2 million from $7&Blion at June 30, 2013. Net chargés for the three months ended September 30, &iiaRd $5.0 million, or €
basis points of average loans. The current loaratoe ratio for our noperforming loans collateralized by real estate #&a4% at September 30, 2013. When we
obtained properties through foreclosure, we haes ladle to quickly sell the properties at amoumés &pproximate book value. We anticipate that wiecantinue tc
see low loss content in our loan portfolio. The Baontinues to maintain conservative underwrititapdards. As a result of the quarterly analysithefallowance fc
loans losses, it was deemed necessary to recadiartillion provision for possible loan losses foe three months ended September 30, 2013. 3&& OWANCE
FOR LOAN LOSSES.”

Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income for the three months ended Septe8®h€013 was $0.9 million, a decrease of $2.@ianifrom $3.5 million for the thre
months ended September 30, 2012. The decreasenimterest income was primarily due to a $0.9 milli@TTI charge recorded for the three months e
September 30, 2013 on three private issue CMOs aedr@ase of $1.0 million in income from fair vakdjustments for the three months ended Septenthe03.!
compared to the comparable prior year period. lfear decreased $0.8 million during the three moaitiied September 30, 2013, primarily due to thercafof $0.!
million of loan fees previously recognized in ino@muring 2013 which were deferred in the currerdtrtgr to be amortized as a yield adjustment. Aespondin
amount of additional compensation expense for lodgination costs was also deferred during theenirquarter. These decreases were partially offget $0.:
million increase in income from bank owned lifeursnce (“BOLI") compared to the three months enSedtember 30, 2012.
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Non-Interest Expense. Non-nterest expense was $19.1 million for the threatm® ended September 30, 2013, a decrease of $iliohrfrom $20.7 million for thi
three months ended September 30, 2012. The deaneasprimarily due to decreases of $0.4 milliorFDIC insurance expense primarily due to a redudiiothe
assessment rate, $0.5 million in OREO/foreclosuperse primarily due to a reduction in naeerual loans, $0.2 million in net losses on sale®REO and $0
million in professional services.

Income before Income Taxes. Income before the provision for income taxes inseea$0.1 million, or 0.6%, to $15.4 million for theee months ended Septen
30, 2013 from $15.3 million for the three monthsleth September 30, 2012 for the reasons discussed.ab

Provision for Income Taxes. Income tax expense was $6.0 million for the thremtims ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. Theieé¢ak rate was 39.0% for t
three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.

COMPARISON OF OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

General. Net income for the nine months ended Septembe2@D8 was $25.8 million, an increase of $0.7 million2.7%, compared to $25.1 million for the r
months ended September 30, 2012. Diluted earniegsgmmon share were $0.86 for the nine monthsceBdptember 30, 2013, an increase of $0.04, or 419%
$0.82 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012.

Return on average equity was 7.9% for both of ihe months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.rRetuaverage assets was 0.8% for both of the novehy
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.

Interest Income. Total interest and dividend income decreased8$idlllion, or 7.3%, to $150.2 million for the nimeonths ended September 30, 2013 from $!
million for the nine months ended September 30220he decrease in interest income was attributabée55 basis point decline in the yield of ingt#arning asse
to 4.69% for the nine months ended September 303 2@m 5.24% in the comparable prior year periblde decrease in the yield was patrtially offset §143.(
million increase in the average balance of inteeashing assets to $4,268.5 million for the nine therended September 30, 2013 from $4,125.5 mifioorthe
comparable prior year period. The 55 basis poictitke in the yield of interestarning assets was primarily due to a 44 basig peduction in the yield of the lo
portfolio to 5.31% for the nine months ended Sebien30, 2013 from 5.75% for the nine months endsute3nber 30, 2012, combined with a 76 basis p@alink ir
the yield on total securities to 2.89% for the nmenths ended September 30, 2013 from 3.65% focdhgparable prior year period. In addition, thdd/ief interest-
earning assets was negatively impacted by a $1h@l®n increase in the average balance of the foyielding securities portfolio for the nine monteade:
September 30, 2013. The 44 basis point decreaseigield of the loan portfolio was primarily due & decline in the rates earned on new loan otigims an
existing loans modified to lower rates. The 76 amint decrease in the yield of the securitiefplow was primarily due to the purchase of newwsdies at lowe
yields than the existing portfolio. The yield oretmortgage loan portfolio decreased 38 basis ptin&46% for the nine months ended September G03 2Zrorr
5.84% for the nine months ended September 30, 20k2.yield on the mortgage loan portfolio, exchglprepayment penalty income, decreased 42 basits fic
5.29% for the nine months ended September 30, 20@85.71% for the nine months ended Septembe2@12.

Interest Expense . Interest expense decreased $7.0 million, or%418 $41.8 million for the nine months ended Seyiter 30, 2013 from $48.8 million for the n
months ended September 30, 2012. The decreaseiashexpense was due to the reduction in theofasterestbearing liabilities, which decreased 29 basis [saic
1.43% for the nine months ended September 30, 2@13 1.72% for the comparable prior year period anshifting of deposit concentrations, as highesting
certificates of deposits average balance decre®28d.7 million to $1,187.4 million, while lower dosy core deposits average balance increased $21dlidn to
$1,724.2 million for the nine months ended Septen®0e 2013. The 29 basis point decrease in theafasterestbearing liabilities was primarily attributable toe
Bank reducing the rates it pays on its deposit gpctsdand a reduction in the cost of borrowed fufitte cost of certificates of deposit, money madgasounts, savini
accounts and NOW accounts decreased 24 basis ,pbinb&sis points, three basis points and nines lpasits, respectively, for the nine months endept&nber 3(
2013 from the comparable prior year period. Tlesufted in a decrease in the cost of due to depssitf 28 basis points to 1.11% for the nine morghde:
September 30, 2013 from 1.39% for the nine montitee September 30, 2012. The cost of borrowed fdedeeased 60 basis points to 2.52% for the ninetime
ended September 30, 2013 from 3.12% for the ninetinscended September 30, 2012 with the averagadealacreasing $183.4 million to $933.3 million tbe nine
months ended September 30, 2013 from $749.9 milbothe nine months ended September 30, 2012 d&hkne in the cost of borrowed funds was primadilie tc
the prepayment of $68.5 million in FHLBY advances during the first quarter of 2013 atamarage cost of 3.21% which was scheduled to matug914 an
replacing those borrowings with new long-term aaemncosting 0.75%, partially offset by a $2.6 miilprepayment penalty incurred on the transaction.
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Net Interest Income . For the nine months ended September 30, 201 teeest income was $108.4 million, a decreas®4d® million, or 4.2%, from $113.2 millic
for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. €beedse in net interest income was attributable 26 basis point decrease in the inétrest spread to 3.26%
the nine months ended September 30, 2013 from 3f62%e nine months ended September 30, 2012ajanffset by the effect of an increase of $14@llion in
the average balance of interestning assets to $4,268.5 million for the nine therended September 30, 2013 from $4,125.5 miftiorthe comparable prior ye
period. The yield on interes@arning assets decreased 55 basis points to 4 @&9#tef nine months ended September 30, 2013 fr@d?/s for the nine months enc
September 30, 2012, while the cost of funds deerk@9 basis points to 1.43% for the nine month&eéreptember 30, 2013 from 1.72% for the comparnaride
year period. The net interest margin decreaseda®¥s kpoints to 3.39% for the nine months ended eeptr 30, 2013 from 3.66% for the nine months e
September 30, 2012. Excluding prepayment penattynme on loans and securities, as well as prepaypesratlties on borrowings, the net interest margoald hav(
decreased 19 basis points to 3.35% for the ningdlm@nded September 30, 2013 from 3.54% for the mionths ended September 30, 2012.

Provision for Loan Losses. A provision for loan losses of $12.9 million waecorded for the nine months ended September 3, 2Ghich was a decrease of §
million from $16.0 million recorded in the nine ntba ended September 30, 2012. During the nine rsamitded September 30, 2013, panforming loans decreas
$28.7 million to $61.2 million from $89.8 milliont ®ecember 31, 2012. Net chargfs for the nine months ended September 30, 26t8ed $13.2 million, or £
basis points of average loans. The current loaratoe ratio for our noperforming loans collateralized by real estate #&4% at September 30, 2013. When we
obtained properties through foreclosure, we haes lable to quickly sell the properties at amoumés &pproximate book value. We anticipate that wiecantinue tc
see low loss content in our loan portfolio. The Baontinues to maintain conservative underwrititendards. As a result of the quarterly analysithefallowance fc
loans losses, it was deemed necessary to recdtd.f fillion provision for possible loan losses fioe nine months ended September 30, 2013. $¢¢ OWANCE
FOR LOAN LOSSES.”

Non-Interest Income . Non-interest income for the nine months ended SepteBMe2013 was $8.5 million, an increase of $2.0iomlfrom $6.5 million for the nin
months ended September 30, 2012. The increaseniinterest income was primarily due to the $2.9ioni gain from the sale of mortgadecked securities duri
the nine months ended September 30, 2013 as parbalance sheet restructuring as discussed abmer (Balance Sheet Restructuring”. Nioterest income als
improved due to a $0.4 million increase in BOLIdnte. These increases were partially offset by.4 80llion increase in net losses from fair valwguatments and
$0.6 million increase in OTTI charges recorded oiwgte issue CMOs during the nine months ended Sege 30, 2013 compared to the nine months e
September 30, 2012. Additionally, loan fees de@@#9.5 million during the nine months ended Sep&m30, 2013, primarily due to the deferral of Idaes to b
amortized as yield adjustments. A correspondinguarhof additional compensation expense for loaginaition costs was also deferred during the cugaatter.

Non-Interest Expense. Non-nterest expense was $61.7 million for the nine tneended September 30, 2013, a decrease of $lidnor 1.3%, from $62.5 millio
for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. €beedse was primarily due to decreases of $0.1omilh FDIC insurance expense primarily due toguation ir
the assessment rate, $0.7 million in OREO/forecmsupense primarily due to a reduction in maacrual loans, $0.5 million in net losses on safe@REO and $0
million in professional services. These decreasa® partially offset by a $1.7 million increasesalaries and employee benefits expense primargytd@annual sala
increases and increased incentives for loan andsitegrowth.
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Income before Income Taxes. Income before the provision for income taxes inseela$1.1 million, or 2.7%, to $42.3 million for thene months ended Septerr
30, 2013 from $41.2 million for the nine months ed&eptember 30, 2012 for the reasons discusseé.abo

Provision for Income Taxes. Income tax expense increased $0.4 million to $i6ilBon for the nine months ended September 30328dm $16.1 million for th
nine months ended September 30, 2012. The eféetetivrate was 39.0% for the nine months endece8dgwr 30, 2013 and 2012.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Assets. Total assets at September 30, 2013 were $4,738i8man increase of $280.8 million, or 6.3%, fr&#,451.4 million at December 31, 2012. Total lgare
increased $162.3 million during the nine monthseen8eptember 30, 2013 to $3,365.3 million from 3,2 million at December 31, 2012. Loan originasi@nc
purchases were $635.2 million for the nine montided September 30, 2013, an increase of $202.mfllom $433.2 million for the nine months endezp®&mbe
30, 2012. During the nine months ended Septembef@03, we continued to focus on the originationnaflti-family properties and business loans with a
relationship. Loan applications in process havginaed to remain strong, totaling $262.2 millicrSzptember 30, 2013 compared to $211.4 milliobetember 3:
2012 and $198.0 million at September 30, 2012.

The following table shows loan originations andghases for the periods indicated:

For the three months For the nine months
ended September 3 ended September 3
(In thousands 2013 2012 2013 2012
Multi-family residentia $ 127,31( $ 6929¢ $ 302,527 $ 211,05:
Commercial real esta(1) 14,18( 1,94: 52,77¢ 21,75¢
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 10,71¢ 3,47¢ 22,45 13,95¢
One-to-four family — residentia 7,98¢ 7,38: 20,87¢ 18,07¢
Cc-operative apartmen 1,037 10C 4,79¢ 1,72¢
Constructior 162 83 1,951 652
Small Business Administratic 92 18C 47C 513
Taxi Medallion(2) - - - 3,46¢
Commercial business and ot 100,66 68,45: 229,36! 162,05:
Total $ 262,15. $ 150,910 $ 635,21¢ $ 433,24¢

(1)Includes purchases of $0.5 million for the nine therended September 30, 20

(2)Includes purchases of $3.5 million for the nine therended September 30, 2012.

The Bank continues to maintain conservative undéngrstandards that include, among other thindeaa-tovalue ratio of 75% or less and a debt coverage odta
least 125%. Multi-family residential, commercial Irestate and one-to-four family mixege property mortgage loans originated during treet months end
September 30, 2013 had an average loan-to-valieeafad4.1% and an average debt coverage ratid @%@

The Bank’s non-performing assets totaled $68.5ianilat September 30, 2013, a decrease of $30.omiitom $98.5 million at December 31, 2012. Tatah-
performing assets as a percentage of total asseesA5% at September 30, 2013 and 2.21% at Dexe3tth2012. The ratio of allowance for loan logse®tal non-
performing loans was 50.4% at September 30, 20334r6% at December 31, 2012. See — “TROUBLED DEESTRUCUTURED AND NONPERFORMINC
ASSETS.”

During the nine months ended September 30, 2018gagebacked securities increased $65.1 million, or 9.6%%785.2 million from $720.1 million at Decem
31, 2012. The increase in mortgageeked securities during the nine months endede8sr 30, 2013 was primarily due to purchases 82 &million, partiall
offset by sales and repayments of $68.5 million &h#&2.4 million, respectively. During the nine memended September 30, 2013, other securitiesasede$43.
million, or 19.1%, to $273.3 million from $229.5 lliin at December 31, 2012. The increase in otkeusties during the nine months ended Septembe2@B wa
primarily due to purchases of $88.0 million, pdlyiaffset by $30.5 million in calls and sales &.8 million. Other securities primarily consistsecurities issued |
government agencies, mutual or bond funds thasirimegovernment and government agency securitidsarporate bonds.

-52-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Liabilities. Total liabilities were $4,305.3 million at Septemi3@, 2013, an increase of $296.2 million, or 7.48km $4,009.1 million at December 31, 2012. Du
the nine months ended September 30, 2013, duepimsiters increased $215.7 million, or 7.2%, to $8,8 million as a result of a $226.6 million incsean cor
deposits partially offset by a $10.9 million de@ean certificates of deposit. Borrowed funds iased $69.8 million during the nine months endededeaiper 3(
2013. The increase in borrowed funds was primatilg to a net increase of $109.4 million in Idegn borrowings partially offset by a $43.0 millioet decrease
short-term borrowings.

Equity. Total stockholders’ equity decreased $15.4 milli@n3.5%, to $427.0 million at September 30, 20081f$442.4 million at December 31, 2012. Stockhade
equity decreased primarily due to a decrease inpoeinensive income of $20.3 million primarily dueaalecline in the market value of the securitiegfplio, the
purchase of 836,092 shares of treasury stock astao€ $13.2 million and the declaration and payheéra dividend of $0.39 per common share tota$itig.8 million
partially offset by net income of $25.8 million afil.4 million due to the issuance of shares froenahnual funding of certain employee retirementgléarough th
release of common shares from the Employee Bemafitt. In addition, the exercise of stock optioneréased stockholdersquity by $0.2 million, including tt
income tax benefit realized. Book value per comrabare was $14.19 at September 30, 2013 compar@ti4t89 at December 31, 2012. Tangible book valu
common share was $13.67 at September 30, 2013 cethfma$13.87 at December 31, 2012.

During the nine months ended September 30, 20E3Ctmpany completed the common stock repurchaggagmothat was approved by the CompanBoard o
Directors on September 20, 2011. On May 22, 20E8Cbmpany announced the authorization by the BofRirectors of a new common stock repurchase jamo
which authorizes the purchase of up to 1,000,0@®eshof its common stock. During the nine montided September 30, 2013, the Company repurcha$ed%®
shares of the Comparsytommon stock at an average cost of $15.73 pee.shaSeptember 30, 2013, 549,870 shares remdie tepurchased under the current <
repurchase program. The repurchase program dodgawetan expiration date or a maximum dollar am¢hait may be paid to repurchase the common sh&test
repurchases under this program will be made frone tio time, on the open market or in privately rieged transactions, at the discretion of the mamamt of th
Company.

Cash flow. During the nine months ended September 30, 2futRis provided by the Company's operating activigenounted to $56.6 million. These fu
combined with $264.6 million provided by financiagtivities and were utilized to fund net investiagfivities of $321.3 million. The Company's primdmysines
objective is the origination and purchase of onésto family (including mixed-use properties), nitflamily residential and commercial real estate nagtgloans ar
commercial, business and SBA loans. During the minaths ended September 30, 2013, the net totahoforiginations and purchases less loan repayzem sale
was $176.9 million. During the nine months endeft@aber 30, 2013, the Company also funded $380IBmin purchases of securities available for sdliring
the nine months ended September 30, 2013, funds prervided by a $223.3 million net increase in a#goand $109.4 million net increase in laegm borrowe
funds. Additionally, funds were provided by $236lion in proceeds from maturities, sales, calf&l prepayments of securities available for saie. Company als
used funds of $43.0 million, $14.1 million and $1illion for net repayments of shadrm borrowed funds, purchases of treasury stockdividend payment
respectively, during the nine months ended SepteBhe2013.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Consolidated Statements of Financial Positiawverbeen prepared in accordance with generallypgedeaccounting principles in the United Stated\oferica
which require the measurement of financial positord operating results in terms of historical dsllavithout considering the changes in fair valueceftair
investments due to changes in interest rates. r@gnehe fair value of financial investments suchloans and securities fluctuates inversely waliiinges in intere
rates. As a result, increases in interest rateddoesult in decreases in the fair value of thenfany’s interesearning assets which could adversely affec
Company’s results of operation if such assets wel®, or, in the case of securities classifiedaslable-for-sale, decreases in the Company’s $tolders’equity, il
such securities were retained.
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The Company manages the mix of interest-earningt&ssd interedtearing liabilities on a continuous basis to maxamieturn and adjust its exposure to interes
risk. On a quarterly basis, management prepare$Bhmings and Economic Exposure to Changes irrdsteRate report for review by the Board of Directors.
summarized below. This report quantifies the padtmthanges in net interest income and net podfetilue should interest rates go up or down 200s haaint:
(shocked), assuming the yield curves of the ratelshwill be parallel to each other. Net portfol@lue is defined as the market value of assetsfrtbe market valt
of liabilities. The market value of assets andiliids is determined using a discounted cash ftaleulation. The net portfolio value ratio is ttaio of the net portfoli
value to the market value of assets. All changesdome and value are measured as percentage chfnogethe projected net interest income and nefgio value
at the base interest rate scenario. The base shi@te scenario assumes interest rates at Sept@mb2013. Various estimates regarding prepayrassimptions a
made at each level of rate shock. Actual resuligdcdiffer significantly from these estimates. Adgember 30, 2013, the Company was within the djnigle set fort
by the Board of Directors for each interest ratele

The following table presents the Company'’s interat shock as of September 30, 2013:

Projected Percentage Chang
Net Interest Net Portfolic Net Portfolic

Change in Interest Ra Income Value Value Ratic
-200 Basis point -2.3% 12.1%% 13.56%
-100 Basis point 0.31 8.64 13.3¢
Base interest rai 0.0c 0.0C 12.6:2
+100 Basis point -5.4¢ -12.97 11.3¢
+200 Basis point -11.17 -26.0¢ 9.9t
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AVERAGE BALANCES

Net interest income represents the difference @tircome on intere-earning assets and expense on intdreating liabilities. Net interest income dependsruthe
relative amount of interest-earning assets anddstbearing liabilities and the interest rate earnegaid on them. The following table sets forth deriaformatior
relating to the Compang’Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditicsh @ansolidated Statements of Income for the threeths ended September 30, 2013
2012, and reflects the average yield on assetawasichge cost of liabilities for the periods indezht Such yields and costs are derived by dividiegme or expen:
by the average balance of assets or liabilitiespeaetively, for the periods shown. Average balararesderived from average daily balances. The gi@hdlude
amortization of fees which are considered adjustsgnyields.

For the three months ended Septembe

2013 2012
Average Yield/ Average
Balance Interesi Cost Balance Interest Cost
Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Mortgage loans, net (: $2,948,64! 39,35¢ 5.34% $2,889,89 41,37: 5.7°%
Other loans, net (1 338,31! 3,18: 3.7¢ 285,36( 3,48¢ 4.8¢
Total loans, ne 3,286,95! 42,54( 5.1¢ 3,175,25. 44,85} 5.6t
Mortgage-backed securitie 787,68( 5,73 2.91 693,00: 6,76¢ 3.9C
Other securitie 265,75 1,56¢ 2.3¢€ 232,68: 1,54¢ 2.6€
Total securitie: 1,053,43. 7,29¢ 2.71 925,68! 8,311 3.5¢
Interes-earning deposits arfederal funds sol 30,90¢ 13 0.17 56,81! 25 0.1¢
Total interes-earning asset 4,371,29. 49,85: 4.5¢ 4,157,75: 53,19: 5.1Z
Other asset 250,74! 244,55(
Total asset $4,622,03 $4,402,30:
Liabilities and Equity
Interes-bearing liabilities
Deposits:
Savings accoun $ 270,95¢ 12¢ 0.1¢ $ 306,57. 15C 0.2C
NOW accountt 1,298,24. 1,67: 0.52 989,64 1,44¢ 0.5¢
Money market accoun 190,26: 7C 0.1¢ 172,01: 75 0.17
Certificate of deposit accour 1,191,57. 5,89¢ 1.9¢ 1,504,73 8,417 2.2L
Total due to depositol 2,951,033 7,761 1.0t 2,972,96! 10,08¢ 1.3¢
Mortgagors' escrow accour 40,59¢ 9 0.0¢ 35,72¢ 9 0.1C
Total deposit: 2,991,63! 7,77¢ 1.04 3,008,69: 10,097 1.3¢
Borrowed funds 989,79: 5,09( 2.0€ 782,61« 5,518 2.82
Total interes-bearing liabilities 3,981,42. 12,86¢ 1.2¢ 3,791,30! 15,61( 1.6E
Non interes-bearing deposit 175,21° 139,56:
Other liabilities 44.27: 38,27¢
Total liabilities 4,200,911 3,969,15!
Equity 421,12 433,15¢
Total liabilities and equit $4,622,03 $4,402,30
Net interest incomenet interest rate spre: $ 36,98t 3.21% $ 37,58 3.4%
Net interes-earning assetsnet interest margi $ 389,87( 3.3¢% $ 366,44 3.62%
Ratio of interes-earning assets interes-bearing liabilities 1.1CX 1.1CX

(1)Loan interest income includes net amortizationafeded fees and costs, late charges, and prepaymealties of approximately $0.9 million and $thBlion for
the three months ended September 30, 2013 and &l ctively
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The following table sets forth certain informatiaating to the Compang’Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditiah@onsolidated Statements of Income
the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 20ti2eflects the average yield on assets and aveas) of liabilities for the periods indicateduc8 yields an
costs are derived by dividing income or expensg¢hbyaverage balance of assets or liabilities, a&smdy, for the periods shown. Average balanaesderived fror
average daily balances. The yields include anatitin of fees which are considered adjustmentseids.

For the nine months ended Septembel

2013 2012
Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interesi Cost Balance Interest Cost
Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Mortgage loans, net (: $2,904,86. 118,92: 5.46% $2,902,20 127,11: 5.82%
Other loans, net (1 316,53 9,42( 3.97 288,83: 10,42¢ 4.81
Total loans, ne 3,221,39 128,34 5.31 3,191,03! 137,54( 5.7¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 763,91¢ 17,32: 3.0z 704,34 20,65: 3.91
Other securities 243,47 4,51¢ 2.47 186,16! 3,741 2.6¢
Total securities 1,007,391 21,83° 2.8¢ 890,51: 24,39¢ 3.6F
Interest-earning deposits and federal funds sold 39,66¢ 54 0.1¢ 43,91 53 0.1€
Total interest-earning assets 4,268,45. 150,23: 4.6¢ 4,125,46! 161,99: 5.24
Other asset 260,91: 240,72:
Total asset $4,529,36! $4,366,18
Liabilities and Equity
Interes-bearing liabilities
Deposits:
Savings accoun $ 277,45: 38¢ 0.1¢ $ 325,33: 54¢ 0.22
NOW accountt 1,273,90! 5,04¢ 0.52 1,001,84. 4,68 0.62
Money market accoun 172,86¢ 197 0.1t 182,97¢ 34C 0.2
Certificate of deposit accour 1,187,40: 18,50¢ 2.0¢ 1,475,11 25,63¢ 2.32
Total due to depositol 2,911,63. 24,13 1.11 2,985,27. 31,20 1.3¢
Mortgagors' escrow accour 46,17: 2€ 0.0¢ 41,17¢ 27 0.0¢
Total deposit: 2,957,80: 24,16( 1.0¢ 3,026,45 31,23: 1.3¢
Borrowed funds 933,31t 17,64¢ 2.52 749,87 17,54¢ 3.12
Total interes-bearing liabilities 3,891,120 41,80 1.4z 3,776,32! 48,777 1.72
Non interes-bearing deposit 162,73: 128,91:
Other liabilities 42,02¢ 35,07¢
Total liabilities 4,095,87: 3,940,31
Equity 433,48 425,86
Total liabilities and equit $4,529,36! $4,366,18
Net interest incomenet interest rate spre: $ 108,42 3.26% $ 113,21! 3.52%
Net interes-earning assetsnet interest margi $ 377,33 3.3% $ 349,13: 3.6€%
Ratio of intere«-earning assets interes-bearing liabilities 1.1CX 1.0¢ X

(1) Loan interest income includes net amortizationefedred fees and costs, late charges, and prepaymealties of approximately $2.7 million and $ghlion for
the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and & ctively
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LOANS

The following table sets forth the Company’s loaigioations (including the net effect of refinangjrand the changes in the Companpobrtfolio of loans, includir
purchases, sales and principal reductions for ¢énegs indicated.

For the nine months ended Septembe
(In thousands 2013 2012

Mortgage Loans

At beginning of periot $ 2,906,88. $ 2,939,01;
Mortgage loans originate
Multi-family residentia 302,52 211,05:
Commercial real esta 52,32¢ 21,75¢
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 22,45; 13,95¢
One-to-four family — residentia 20,87¢ 18,07¢
Cc-operative apartmen 4,79¢ 1,72¢
Constructior 1,951 652
Total mortgage loans originat 404,93. 267,21t
Mortgage loans purchase
Commercial Loans Purchas 457 -
Total mortgage loans Purchas 457 -
Less:
Principal and other reductio 281,78t 284,68
Sales 22,98« 33,04¢
At end of period $ 3,007,49! $ 2,888,49!

Commercial Business and Other Loan:

At beginning of perioc $ 314,49 $ 274,98:
Other loans originatet
Small business administrati 47C 51z
Taxi Medallion - 8
Commercial busines 225,33 158,73(
Other 4,02¢ 3,32:
Total other loans originate 229,83! 162,57
Other loans purchase
Taxi Medallion - 3,45¢
Total other loans purchas - 3,45¢
Less:
Principal and other reductio 164,78 148,96°
Sales and loans transferred to available for 2,382 7,17¢
At end of perioc $ 377,16( $ 284,86!
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TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCUTURED AND NON -PERFORMING ASSETS

Management continues to adhere to the Bank’s coatbegvunderwriting standards. The majority of thenB's nonperforming loans are collateralized by reside
income producing properties that are occupied etheretaining more of their value and reducinggbtential loss. The Bank takes a proactive appré@achanagin
delinquent loans, including conducting site exariams and encouraging borrowers to meet with a Bapkesentative. The Bank has been developing-ttrort
payment plans that enable certain borrowers tayltheir loans current. The Bank reviews its delgmgies on a loan by loan basis and continuallyaeepl ways t
help borrowers meet their obligations and retummthback to current status. At times, the Bank nmesgructure a loan to enable a borrower to contima&inc
payments when it is deemed to be in the best teng-interest of the Bank. This restructure mayuide making concessions to the borrower that thekBeould no
make in the normal course of business, such asirggthe interest rate until the next reset daxéereling the amortization period thereby lowerihg tmonthh
payments, or changing the loan to interest onlynpeyts for a limited time period. At times, certpimblem loans have been restructured by combiniagerthan on
of these options. The Bank believes that restrigjuthese loans in this manner will allow certaorrbwers to become and remain current on theirdodahe Ban
classifies these loans as TDR. Loans which have beeent for six consecutive months at the tiney thre restructured as TDR remain on accrual statans whicl
were delinquent at the time they are restructusea DR are placed on naerual status until they have made timely paymfemtsix consecutive months. Loans
are restructured as TDR but are not performingctoedance with the restructured terms are excldded the TDR table below, as they are placed onawmrua
status and reported as non-performing loans.

The following table shows loans classified as Th& are performing according to their restructuezchs at the periods indicated:

September 3  June 30 December 3:

(In thousands 2013 2013 2012
Accrual Status:
Multi-family residentia $ 281: $ 282: $ 2,34¢
Commercial real esta 3,78¢ 3,797 3,26°
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 2,307 2,315 2,33¢
One-to-four family - residentia 367 36¢ 374
Constructior 1,612 1,612 3,50(
Commercial business and ot} 4,36¢ 4,40: 3,84¢
Total 15,25: 15,32( 15,67:
Non-accrual status:
Commercial real esta 3,552 4,04~ 3,87:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 38t 38¢ -
Total 3,937 4,431 3,87
Total performing troubled debt restructured $ 19,18¢ $ 19,75 $ 19,54«

During the nine months ended September 30, 2018,|dans totaling $2.2 million were restructuredl atassified as TDR, while $2.0 million in repayrtemwere
received.

Interest income on loans is recognized on the atdrasis. The accrual of income on loans is disocoatl when certain factors, such as contractuahagieéncy of 9
days or more, indicate reasonable doubt as tairtieyt collectability of such income. Additionallyncollected interest previously recognized on aoorual loans
reversed from interest income at the time the lsgplaced on non-accrual statusoans in default 90 days or more as to their mtutate but not their payme
continue to accrue interest as long as the borroaetinues to remit monthly payments.
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The following table shows non-performing assethatperiods indicated:

September 3  June 30 December 3:

(In thousands 2013 2013 2012
Loans 90 days or more past duand still accruing:
Multi-family residentia $ 47¢ $ - $ =
Commercial real esta 29¢ - -
One-to-four family - residentia 15 15 -
Commercial business and ot 502 55¢ 644
Total 1,29¢ 572 644
Non-accrual loans:
Multi-family residentia 18,44¢ 19,27: 16,48¢
Commercial real esta 10,65 12,67¢ 15,64(
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 9,85¢ 11,27: 18,28(
One-to-four family - residentia 13,22¢ 12,15¢ 13,72¢
Cc-operative apartmen 16C 16C 234
Constructior 4,96: 7,32¢ 7,695
Small business administrati - 44E 28¢
Commercial business and ot 2,56¢ 9,99¢ 16,86(
Total 59,86 73,30¢ 89,20¢
Total non-performing loans 61,16: 73,88: 89,84¢
Other non-performing assets:
Real estate acquired through foreclos 3,50¢ 2,591 5,27¢
Investment securitie 3,831 4,301 3,332
Total 7,33¢ 6,892 8,61(
Total non-performing assets $ 68,49: $ 80,77« $ 98,45¢

Included in noraccrual loans were three loans totaling $7.3 mmillfour loans totaling $10.1 million and seven éotaling $11.1 million which were restructures
TDR which were not performing in accordance witkitlestructured terms at September 30, 2013, 30n2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

The Bank’s norperforming assets totaled $68.5 million at Septer30e 2013, a decrease of $12.3 million from $8@ilion at June 30, 2013 and a decrease of ¢
million from $98.5 million at December 31, 2012.tdlononperforming assets as a percentage of total assets W45% at September 30, 2013, 1.76% at Jui
2013 and 2.21% at December 31, 2012. The ratitlaf/ance for loan losses to total npefforming loans was 50.4% at September 30, 203.8% at June 30, 20
and 34.6% at December 31, 2012.

The Bank’s norperforming loans totaled $61.2 million at Septent@r2013, a decrease of $12.7 million from $73iian at June 30, 2013 and a decrease of {
million from $89.8 million at December 31, 2012.1ing the three months ended September 30, 201®a28 totaling $11.1 million were added to remerual loan:
12 loans totaling $3.6 million were returned tofpeming status, nine loans totaling $7.9 millionrev@aid in full, seven loans totaling $4.3 milliarere sold, seve
loans totaling $1.6 million were transferred toestheal estate owned and charge-offs of $4.7 miliere recorded on non-performing loans that wereperforming
at the beginning of the third quarter of 2013.

Non-performing investment securities include two podierst preferred securities for which we are noeiging payments. At September 30, 2013, thesestnven
securities had a combined amortized cost and maske¢ of $8.3 million and $3.8 million, respective
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The following table shows our delinquent loans #ratless than 90 days past due still accruingastend considered performing at the periods atdi:

September 30, 201

December 31, 201

60- 89 30-59 60- 89 30-59
days days days days
(In thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 286¢ $ 1547 $ 4,827 $ 24,05¢
Commercial real esta 5,01t 9,37¢ 3,622 9,76¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 68t 19,49° 3,36¢ 21,01:
One-to-four family - residentia 1,20( 2,27¢ 1,88¢ 3,407
Cc-operative apartmen - - - -
Construction loan - - - 2,462
Small Business Administratic - 14¢ - 404
Taxi medallion - - - -
Commercial business and ot - - 6 2
Total delinquent loan $ 9,76¢ $ 46,77( $ 13,70¢ $ 61,1U

CRITICIZED AND CLASSIFIED ASSETS

Our policy is to review our assets, focusing priigaon the loan portfolio, other real estate owrsedl the investment portfolios, to ensure that teglit quality it
maintained at the highest levels. When weaknemgeglentified, immediate action is taken to cdrtbe problem through direct contact with the baro or issue
We then monitor these assets and, in accordandeowit policy and current regulatory guidelines, designate them as “Special Mentiomhich is considered
“Criticized Asset,” and “Substandard,” “Doubtfulgr “Loss,” which are considered “Classified Assetss deemed necessary. We designate an asset aanSab
when a welldefined weakness is identified that jeopardizesotiderly liquidation of the debt. We designate aseh as Doubtful when it displays the inherent weal
of a Substandard asset with the added provisidrctiection of the debt in full, on the basis afsting facts, is highly improbable. We designateaaset as Loss il
is deemed the debtor is incapable of repaymenén&dhat are designated as Loss are charged talldveance for Loan Losses. Assets that are aocrual ar
designated as Substandard, Doubtful or Loss. Wigrlte an asset as Special Mention if the assetmitesarrant designation within one of the otheegaries, bt
does contain a potential weakness that deservesrcidtention. Our total Criticized and Classifasbets were $167.1 million at September 30, 20H&ceease

$57.2 million from $224.2 million at December 3012.
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The following table sets forth the Banks’ assetsglwated as Criticized and Classified at Septer@®de2013:

(In thousands Special Mentio Substandai  Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $ 10,84¢ $ 23,73t $ - $ $ 34,58
Commercial real esta 12,88t 21,30( - 34,18¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 9,65¢ 14,93: - 24,581
One-to-four family - residentia 1,71« 14,75: - 16,46
Cc-operative apartmen - 164 - 164
Construction loan 1,91¢ 5,42¢ - 7,341
Small Business Administratic 33¢ - - 33€
Commercial business and ot 2,00( 5,93¢ 50 7,98¢
Total loans 39,35 86,24 50 125,65:.
Investment Securities: 4
Pooled trust preferred securiti - 10,49: - 10,49:
Private issue trust preferred securi - 5,74t - 5,74t
Private issue CMO - 21,66¢ - 21,668
Total investment securities - 37,90:¢ - 37,90:
Other Real Estate Own - 3,50: - 3,50¢
Total $ 39,35 $ 127,65. $ 50 $ $ 167,05¢
The following table sets forth the Banks’ assetsigleated as Criticized and Classified at Decembep312:
(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandai  Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $ 16,34 $ 22,76¢ $ - $ $ 39,11«
Commercial real esta 11,097 27,87 - 38,97
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 13,10« 26,50¢ - 39,61(
One-to-four family - residentia 5,22 15,32¢ - 20,55:
Cc-operative apartmen 102 237 - 34C
Construction loan 3,80¢ 10,59¢ - 14,40:
Small Business Administratic 32¢ 212 244 77¢
Commercial business and ot} 3,04¢ 18,41¢ 1,08( 22,54
Total loans 53,04+ 121,94¢ 1,324 176,31
Investment Securities: 4
Pooled trust preferred securiti - 10,41¢ - 10,41¢
Private issue trust preferred securi - 5,77(C - 5,77(C
Private issue CM( - 26,42¢ - 26,42¢
Total investment securitie - 42,61¢ - 42,61¢
Other Real Estate Own - 5,27¢ - 5,27¢
Total $ 53,04: $ 169,84: $ 132¢ $ $ 224,21(

(1) Our investment securities are classified ezusties available for sale and as such are chaietheir fair value in our Consolidated Finan@shtements. Tl
securities above had a fair value of $32.7 milidord $35.2 million at September 30, 2013 and Dece®bg2012, respectively. Under current applicakfgulaton
guidelines, we are required to disclose the clizskihvestment securities, as shown in the tabidese, at their book values (amortized cost, orvalue for securitie
that are under the fair value option). Additionatlye requirement is only for the Banlk®curities. Flushing Financial Corporation had prieate issue trust preferr
security classified as Substandard with a markktevaf $0.3 million at September 30, 2013 and twisgte issue trust preferred securities classifisdSubstanda

with a market value of $0.8 million at December 2012.
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On a quarterly basis, all collateral dependentdahat are designated as Special Mention, Substmdddoubtful are internally reviewed for impairntehased o
updated cash flows for income producing propextiespdated independent appraisals. The loan bedamfccollateral dependent impaired loans are toempared t
the loans updated fair value. The balance whicleeds fair value is generally charged-off to thevedince for loan losses.

We designate investment securities as Substandaet the investment grade rating by one or morehefrating agencies is below investment grade. We
designated a total of nine investment securitias dne held at the Bank as Substandard at Septe30b@013. Our classified investment securitieSegitember 3
2013 held by the Bank include five private issue GM@ted below investment grade by one or more @fr#ing agencies, three issues of pooled truserpes
securities and one private issue trust preferredritg. The Investment Securities which are clasdifis Substandard at September 30, 2013 are tgectiniat wer
rated investment grade when we purchased themeTdezarities have each been subsequently downgtgdatileast one rating agency to below investngeatie
Through September 30, 2013, two of the pooled preferred securities and four private issue CM@xat paying principal and interest as schedulegl &8t each
these securities quarterly for impairment, throaghndependent third party.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

We have established and maintained on our bookdl@mance for loan losses that is designed to plew reserve against estimated losses inherent ioverall loa
portfolio. The allowance is established throughr@vision for loan losses based on managementaluation of the risk inherent in the varioumponents of the lo:
portfolio and other factors, including historicabh loss experience (which is updated quarterlyanges in the composition and volume of the paafaollectior
policies and experience, trends in the volume ofatcrual loans and local and national economic ¢mmdi. The determination of the amount of the afloee fo
loan losses includes estimates that are suscepbildgnificant changes due to changes in appraeales of collateral, national and local econoroaditions an
other factors. We review our loan portfolio by sggp@ categories with similar risk and collateraheltteristics. Impaired loans are segregated aneWwed separatel
All non-accrual loans and TDRs are considered ingglailmpaired loans secured by collateral are vesiebased on the fair value of their collateralr Ron-
collateralized impaired loans, management estingiggecoveries that are anticipated for each Ibaoonnection with the determination of the allowe, the mark
value of collateral ordinarily is evaluated by ataff appraiser. On a quarterly basis, the estidhaddues of impaired mortgage loans are internayewed, based
updated cash flows for income producing properi@esl at times an updated independent appraisditéned. The loan balances of collateral depenuiepéirec
loans are then compared to the propsriypdated fair value. We consider fair value ofatetal dependent loans to be 85% of the appraisédternally estimate
value of the property. The balance which exceeitsvidue is generally chargeaff. When evaluating a loan for impairment, we du rely on guarantees, and
amount of impairment, if any, is based on the failue of the collateral. We do not carry loans atahue in excess of the fair value due to a guamfitom th
borrower. Impaired mortgage loans that were writlemn resulted from quarterly reviews or updatedrajsals that indicated the propertiestimated value hi
declined from when the loan was originated. Curiygar charge-offs, charg#f trends, new loan production, current balancephyticular loan categories, ¢
delinquent loans by particular loan categoriesadse taken into account in determining the appetpramount of allowance. The Board of Directordenes an
approves the adequacy of the allowance for loaselsn a quarterly basis.

In assessing the adequacy of the allowance, wewewur loan portfolio by separate categories withilar risk and collateral characteristics, e.gultiafamily
residential, commercial real estate, one-to-foumilia mixed-use property, one-to-four family resitiah co-operative apartment, construction, SBA, comme
business, taxi medallion and consumer loans. Iragdoans are segregated and reviewed separatelgoWet carry loans at a value in excess of thevidue due to
guarantee from the borrower. Impaired mortgageddaat were written down resulted from quarterlyie®s or updated appraisals that indicated the gtms’
estimated value had declined from when the loanaviggnated. Loans classified as TDR which ardgrering in accordance with their modified terms avaluate
based on the projected discounted cash flow ofekiuctured loan at the loans effective interat prior to restructuring. A portion of the allavea for loan losses
allocated in the amount by which the recorded itaest in the TDR exceeds the discounted cash fieaw.noneollateralized impaired loans, management estir
any recoveries that are anticipated for each I#aportion of the allowance is allocated to nowitateralized loans based on these estimates.dBasé¢he review (
impaired loans, which includes loans classified BR, a portion of the allowance was allocated tpaired loans in the amount of $1.4 million and $hifion ai
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, resplgctiv
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General provisions are established against perfayitans in our portfolio in amounts deemed prudgninanagement. A portion of the allowance is ated to th
remaining portfolio based on historical loss exgece. The historical loss period used for thiscallmn was three years. Management also preparediditiona
analysis to ensure that the remaining portion efatiowance for possible loan losses is sufficierdover losses inherent in the loan portfolio.sTémalysis considere
(1) the current economic environment, (2) delinguyeand noraccrual trends, (3) classified loan trends, (4)rtbk inherent in our loan portfolio and volume
trends of loan types, (5) recent trends in charff®-(6) changes in underwriting standards, (& éxperience, ability and depth of our lenders, @)dcollectior
policies and experience. Based on these reviewsageament concluded the general portion of the allme should be $29.4 million and $29.6 million ept®mbe
30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, tieguin a total allowance of $30.8 million and $Bimillion at September 30, 2013 and December 312,
respectively. The Board of Directors reviews angrapes the adequacy of the allowance for loan fosesea quarterly basis. Management has concludethariioar
of Directors has concurred, that at September @03 2the allowance was sufficient to absorb logsesrent in our loan portfolio.
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The following table sets forth the activity in tBempany's allowance for loan losses for the periodisated:

For the nine months ended Septembe

(Dollars in thousands 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of perit $ 31,10¢ $ 30,34«
Provision for loan losse 12,93¢ 16,00(
Loans charge-off:
Multi-family residentia (3,459 (5,257)
Commercial real esta (905) (2,407
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert (3,780) (3,407
One-to-four family — residentia (695) (1,096
Cc-operative apartmen (74) (62)
Constructior (2,67¢) (2,500
Small Business Administratic (42€) (329
Commercial business and ott (2,059 (1,48¢)
Total charge-offs (14,079 (16,529
Recoveries
Multi-family residentia 158 89
Commercial real esta 29z 24¢
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 16¢ 337
One-to-four family — residentia 117 28
Ca-operative apartmen 4 -
Small Business Administratic 77 59
Commercial business and ott 36 104
Total recoverie: 851 867
Net charg-offs (13,229 (15,65
Balance at end of peric $ 30,81¢ $ 30,68
Ratio of net char¢-offs during the period taverage loans outstanding during the pe 0.55% 0.65%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross lodrend of perioc 0.91% 0.97%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to -performingassets at end of perit 44 9% 28.56%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to -performingloans at end of peric 50.3% 30.4%
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RECENT PROPOSED CHANGES TO REGULATORY CAPITAL RULES

During July 2013, the federal bank regulatory agenissued revised notices of proposed rulemaKiNgRs") that would revise and replace the agenciasen
capital rules. The NPRs include numerous revistoribe existing capital regulations, including, bot limited to, the following:

Revises the definition of regulatory capital comgats and related calculatior

Adds a new common equity tier 1 capital ra

Increases the minimum tier 1 capital ratio requieatfrom four percent to six perce

Incorporates the revised regulatory capital regquéets into the Prompt Corrective Action framew

Implements a new capital conservation buffer thatilh limit payment of capital distributions and teém discretionary bonus payments to executiveceft
and key risk takers if the banking organizationsinet hold certain amounts of common equity tieafital in addition to those needed to meet itsinmmim

risk-based capital requiremen

Provides a transition period for several aspectthefproposed rule: the new minimum capital raiquirements, the capital conservation buffer, dre
regulatory capital adjustments and deducti

Increases capital requirements for -due loans, high volatility commercial real estatpasures, and certain sk-term loan commitment:
Removes references to credit ratings consistet 8gction 939A of the Do-Frank Act.

Establishes due diligence requirements for sezatitin exposures.

The capital regulations would be effective Janugrg015 for bank holding companies and banks veisis than $15 billion in total assets, such as amgny an
Bank. Based on our preliminary assessment of thed\Ne believe we will see an increase in our tasidweighted assets. However, the Company and the E
based on our preliminary assessment, would meeetherements of the NPRs and will continue to dvestdered well-capitalized.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

For a discussion of the qualitative and quantieatiNsclosures about market risk, see the informatioder the caption "Management's Discussion andy8isao!
Financial Condition and Results of Operations ellest Rate Risk."

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company carried out, under the supervisionwaitid the participation of the Comparsymanagement, including its Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financi.
Officer, an evaluation of the effectiveness of thesign and operation of the Company’s disclosurgrots and procedures (as defined in Rule 13g) under tF
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the enchefgeriod covered by this Quarterly Report. Bagedh that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officad &hie
Financial Officer concluded that, as of Septemb®r 2913, the design and operation of these disidosantrols and procedures were effective. Duthegy perio
covered by this Quarterly Report, there have be@edhanges in the Compasyinternal control over financial reporting thavlanaterially affected, or are reason:
likely to materially affect, the Company’s interrantrol over financial reporting.
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ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is a defendant in various lawsuits. ddament of the Company, after consultation wittsidet legal counsel, believes that the resolutiothes:
various matters will not result in any material exbe effect on the Company's consolidated finaaiadiition, results of operations and cash flows.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes from theaigtioffs disclosed in the Company’s Annual Reporffamm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table sets forth information regaglithe shares of common stock repurchased by thep@myrduring the three months ended September 3@, 20

Total Number of

Maximum
Number of

Total Shares Purchast Shares That May
Number as Part of Publicl Yet Be Purchase
of Shares Average Prict Announced Plan Under the Plans
Period Purchase: Paid per Shar or Program: or Program:
July 1 to July 31, 201 - $ - - 579,87(
August 1 to August 31, 201 10,00( 18.01 10,00( 569,87(
September 1 to September 30, 2 20,00( 18.1 20,00( 549,87(
Total 30,00( $ 18.12 30,00(

During the three months ended June 30, 2013, timep@oy completed the common stock repurchase protirainwas approved by the CompanfBoard of Directol
on September 20, 2011. On May 22, 2013, the Companypunced the authorization by the Board of Dinsctd a new common stock repurchase program \
authorizes the purchase of up to 1,000,000 shdiies@mmon stock. The repurchase program doebkan@ an expiration date or a maximum dollar amhthet ma
be paid to repurchase the common shares. Stockctggses under this program will be made from timéime, on the open market or in privately nedeti

transactions, at the discretion of the managenmfethecCompany.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
ITEM5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

-67-




PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of Decemhe2I5b by and between Flushing Financial Corponagiod Atlantic Liberty Financial Corp. (

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financ@dbrporation (1

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation |

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation |

3.4 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Rgating Preferred Stock of Flushing Financial @amation (4)

3.5 Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated as$SArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of FlnghFinancial Corporation (<

3.6 By-Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation |

4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20@&ebka Flushing Financial Corporation and Computaesirust Company N.A., as Rights Age
which includes the form of Certificate of IncreageShares Designated as Series A Junior Partiogp#&ieferred Stock as Exhibit A, form of Right
Certificate as Exhibit B and the Summary of Rigbt®urchase Preferred Stock as Exhibit C

4.2 Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingaiertonc-term debt. None of such debt exceeds ten percdritshing Financial Corporation's to
assets; therefore, copies of constituent instrusnéefining the rights of the holders of such debtreot included as exhibits. Copies of instrumexits
respect to such lorterm debt will be furnished to the Securities andtitange Commission upon requ

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Saes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeil€tl herewith)

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Saes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeil¢d herewith)

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbaxley @ct of 2002 by the Chief Executive Offic
(furnished herewith

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbaxley @ct of 2002 by the Chief Financial Offic
(furnished herewith

101.INS XBRL Instance Document (filed herewit

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed heétt®

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutn@iled herewith)

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhéiied herewith)

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documene(fiherewith)

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentffiled herewith

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwihe Registration Statement on For-1 filed September 1, 1995, Registration No-96488.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwitorm &K filed September 26, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwitorm &8 filed May 31, 2002

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwitorm 1(-Q for the quarter endeSeptember 30, 200

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm &K filed September 11, 200

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm 1(-K filed March 15, 2012

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm &K filed December 23, 200!
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causiedréport to be signed on its behalf by the undesi thereun
duly authorized.

Flushing Financial Corporatio

Dated:November 12, 201 By: /s/John R. Bura
John R. Bural
President and Chief Executive Offic

Dated:November 12, 201 By: /s/David W. Fry
David W. Fry

Executive Vice President, Treasurer i
Chief Financial Office
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of Decemhe2I5b by and between Flushing Financial Corponagiod Atlantic Liberty Financial Corp. (

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financ@drporation (1.

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation |

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation |

3.4 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Rgating Preferred Stock of Flushing Financial @amation (4)

3.5 Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated as$SArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of FlnghFinancial Corporation (2

3.6 By-Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation |

4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20@¢eka Flushing Financial Corporation and Computaesirust Company N.A., as Rights Age
which includes the form of Certificate of Increa$eShares Designated as Series A Junior Partioip&treferred Stock as Exhibit A, form of Right
Certificate as Exhibit B and the Summary of Rigbt®urchase Preferred Stock as Exhibit C

4.2 Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingaiertonc-term debt. None of such debt exceeds ten percdritshing Financial Corporation's to
assets; therefore, copies of constituent instrusnéetining the rights of the holders of such debtret included as exhibits. Copies of instrumevits
respect to such lorterm debt will be furnished to the Securities andtitange Commission upon requ

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeil€tl herewith)

31.2 Certificationpursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeil¢d herewith)

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbaxley @ct of 2002 by the Chief Executive Offic
(furnished herewith

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbaxley @ct of 2002 by the Chief Financial Offic
(furnished herewith

101.INS XBRL Instance Document (filed herewit

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed hétte

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutn@iled herewith)

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhéiied herewith)

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documene(fiherewith)

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentffiled herewith

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwihe Registration Statement on For-1 filed September 1, 1995, Registration No-96488.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwitorm K filed September 26, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwitorm &8 filed May 31, 2002

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwitorm 1(-Q for the quarter endeSeptember 30, 200

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm &K filed September 11, 200

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm 1(-K filed March 15, 2012

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm &K filed December 23, 200!
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John R. Buran, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ@6f Flushing Financial Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or éonittate a material fact necessary to make thenséats
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined ihd&hge Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrel financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd
have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervision, to ensate th
material information relating to the registrantlirding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtovwus by others within those entities, partidylduring
the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under our supervjgion
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfyadilfinancial reporting and the preparation imiacial statements for external purposes in acrare with
generally accepted accounting principles;
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the effectivenesthe
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étieeqeriod covered by this report based on swveluation; and
d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most recestiafi quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the caan annual report) that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, tlegistrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial reporting, teetregistrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registsabtiard of directors (or persons performing thevedgent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal comvel financial reporting which are reasonably lijke
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to reggrtbcess, summarize and report financial inforamgtand
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrargtinternal control over financ
reporting.

Date:November 12, 201 By: /s/John R. Bura
John R. Bural
President and Chief Executive Offic




FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David W. Fry, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ@6f Flushing Financial Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or éonittate a material fact necessary to make thenséats
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined ihd&hge Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrel financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd
have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervision, to ensate th
material information relating to the registrantlirding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtovwus by others within those entities, partidylduring
the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under our supervjgion
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfyadilfinancial reporting and the preparation imiacial statements for external purposes in acrare with
generally accepted accounting principles;
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the effectivenesthe
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étieeqeriod covered by this report based on swveluation; and
d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most recestiafi quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the caan annual report) that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, tlegistrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial reporting, teetregistrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registsabtiard of directors (or persons performing thevedgent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal comvel financial reporting which are reasonably lijke
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to reggrtbcess, summarize and report financial inforamgtand
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrargtinternal control over financ
reporting.

Date:November 12, 201

By: /s/David W. Fry

David W. Fry

Executive Vice President, Treasurer i
Chief Financial Office



FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Flushifigancial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Foli®-Q for the period ended September 30, 2013 ed fil
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ort#tie hereof (the “Report”), John R. Buran, Chief Executive Officer of ther@aration, certify, pursuant
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBe¥@6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, thahjoknowledge:

(2) the Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlygoresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the Gogpion.

By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Buran

Chief Executive Officer
November 12, 201



FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Flushifigancial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Foli®-Q for the period ended September 30, 2013 ed fil
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, David W. Fry, Chighancial Officer of the Corporation, certify, puest to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBe¥@6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, thahjoknowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requiments of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repomlygoresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the @ogtion.

By: /s/David W. Fry
David W. Fry

Chief Financial Officer
November 12, 201



